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HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Good morning. My name is Carol
Sudman and I'm the hearing officer with the Pollution Control
Board. This is PCB 02-177, the Pecple of the State of I11inois
vs, John Prior, d/b/a Prior 01l Company and James Mezo, d/b/a
Mezo 01l Company.

It is a few minutes after 10 o'clock and Mr. Mezoc is not
vet here, but we're going to go ahead and begin because we have
to be out of here by four o'clock today.

I will note for the reccrd that there are no members of the
public present alsc. Members of the public may provide public
comment if they so choose.

At issue in this case 1s the People's complaint alleging
that Respondent's viclated the Environmental Protection and the
Board's regulation. Numerous viclations are alleged concerning
Respondents' facilities in Wamac, Washington County.

You should know it is the Pollution Control Board, and not
me, that will make the final decision in this case. My purpose
is to conduct the hearing in a neutral and orderly manner so that
we have a clear record of the proceedings. I will also assess
the credibility of the witnesses on the record at the end of the
hearing.

This hering was noticed pursuant to the Act and the Board's
rules and will be conducted pursuant to Sections 101.600 through

101.632 of the Board's procedural rules.
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At this time I will ask the parties to make their
appearances on the record, please.

MS. CATER: Sally Carter with the Attorney General's
Office.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: And, Mr. Pricr, vyou're
representing yourself here today:; is that right?

MR. PRIOR: Yes.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAM: Mr. Mezo is expected to be here as
far as you know?

MR. PRIOR: I assume so. I --

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: All right. Are there any
preliminary matters te discuss on the record?

MS. CARTER: The People have no preliminary matters.

HEARING QOFFICER SUDMAN: Okay. Mr. Prior, anything
preliminary before we begin?

MR. PRIOR: I den't know if it's preliminary cr when I
should present it. I would like to present some evidence that 1
was not the one that done, at least part of this, and T really
believe a2ll of it. But I don't know if I should do that now or
when.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Yeah, well, that's the purpose of
the hearing today. You will ke able to put on all your evidence
after the People put on their evidence,

MR. PRIOR: Okay.
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HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: 1I'll let you know when. Would the
People like to give an opening statement?

MS. CARTER: A brief one.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Okay.

MS. CARTER: Thank you. The People are before the Board
due to the Respondent, John Prior's, open dumping of fluids
generated from oll steps and activities and other waste at a site
commonly referred to as the Gomper site. A number of land
pollution viclations have been alleged and will be proven today
to the testimony of two Illincis EPA inspectors, Mr. Mike Grant
and Mr. Chris Cahnovsky.

In addition, the People will present evidence of three
separate releases of o0il and/or produced fluids to State water by
Mr. Prior and/cr Mr, James Mezo. The first of these releases
took place at a site commonly referred to as the Wamac City Park
site by John Prior. Emergency Responder, Cheryl Cahnovsky, will
testify not only to the release, but tc its impact, but to prior
failure to adeguately maintain and respond to the release. The
seceond release occurred at the Cestreich Tank Battery, a site
that was, and is still, permitted by the Tllincis Department of
Natural Resources to Mr. Mezo.

At the time of the incident Prior operated the tank
battery. Emergency Responders, Tom Powell and Cheryl Cahnovsky,

will testify to the releases, its impact and the Respondents®
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failure to adequately contain and respond to the release.

Finally, the third release cccurred at the Morgan Kalberx
Kamp Site coperated by Mr. Prior.

Emergency Responder, Cheryl Cahnovsky, will testify to the
raelease and its Impacts again.

In additicn, the People will offer the testimeny from one
witness who will discuss the relative permitting and disposal
regquirements of the Illinoils 0il and Gas Act.

Based on the facts that we will be presented in this
hearing, the People respectfully request that the Board find the
Respondent in vicolation of the Illinois Envircnmental Protection
Act and the assoclated regulations. In addition, the Pecple seek
a penalty that appropriately addresses the duration and the
gravity to violation.

Finally, the People reguest that Board award the People
attorney's fees for Prior's repeated viclaticns of the Act. The
State's prayer for relief will be addressed in greater detail in
the State's post-hearing brief. Thank you.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Thank you. Mr. Prior -~ First of
all, let me ask, are you Mr. Mezo or are you a witness? You are
Mr. Mezo. Would you like to have a seat at the table with
Mr. Prior? You can make your appearance now. Just state your
name and -~-

MR. MEZO: James Mezo.
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HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: A&nd you're representing yourself?

MR. MEZO: Yes.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Mr. Prior, would you like to give
an opening statement? You don't have to.

MR. PRIOR: 1 like to say that these alleged things that --
I don't knew if I should, Sally Carter or the State, whoever is
sayilng that, I disagree with and that 1 wasn't the cne that done
it. And I think I can show you, as well as the others here, that
I didn*t do it.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Okay. Thank you very much.

Mr. Mezo, would you like to gilve an opening statement? Again,
it's not required.

MR. MEZO: Well, Just that I prought, you know, what
evidence I can come up with as far as correspondence and that.
And at the time the o©il spill happened on the Oestreich lease, I
have, priocr to that, attempted to transfer that property and had
sold it to Mr. Prior along with the equipment, and he was unable
to get the permit transferred at that time. And at the time of
the spill, we still hadn't succeeded in doing that. I have a
letter from the EPA saying that they have the evidence.

HEARING QFFICER 30UDMAN: OQkay. Thank you. What's going to
happen is the People will call all of thelr witnesses, and when
their witnesses are done, then you will have an copportunity to

put on all ycur evidence, okay. Having said that, the Feople can
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present their case.

M5.

CRRTER: Okay. The People call Mike Grant.

HEARING QFFICER SUDMAN: You can take the witness stand

over there. Would you please swear him in.

MICHAEL D. GRANT,

called as a witness herein, having been first duly sworn,

deposeth

and saith as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

QUESTIONS BY MS. CARTER:

Q. Please state your name.

A. Michael D. Grant.

0. Can you tell me a bit about your post~high school
aducation?

A, I have a kachelor's degree in environmental studies

from, what was then Sangamon State, now the University of

Illinois,

o.

Springfield.
And when did you obtain that degree?
1983.
With whom are you currently employed?

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency. I work for

the Bureau of Land in the Ccllinsville Regional Cffice.

Q.

1llinols

A.

Ckay. And what's your current position with the
EPA?

I've been serving as assistant regional manager for the
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past 14 years.

Q. Okay. As the assistant regional manager for the office,
can you tell me a bit about your dutlies?

. In regards to overseeing other personnel in the Bureaun
of Land and assisting and training, I also conduct various
inspections, the majority of being hazardous waste compliance
inspections.

Q. And 1 think you mentioned that you trained new employees

as well, sir?

A. Right.
Q. Okay. What does that consist of?
A. Consists of taking them out in the field, showing them

how our inspection reports are to be written up, assisting in
drafting letters, reviewing their work, sampling, showing them
how to sample, and all the procedures that the Bureau of Land is

required to follew during inspections.

Q. I believe you mentioned before that you alsoc conduct
inspections?

A, Right.

Q. And that includes hazardous waste inspections?

I, And scllid waste inspections.

Q. When you say solid waste inspections, what does that
mean?

A, Materials such as garbage, liquids, stuff that's
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non-hazardous is referred to as solid waste.

o, During the course of your inspection --

A. Yes.

Q. -- do you also review certain reports that are
submitted?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. What sort of reports might you review?

B, I would review closure plans submitted by regulated

facilities in regards to clean-up activities we may have required
them to do through a course of findings during an inspection,
correspondence submitted in response to 1f we 1ssued a Vicolation
NMotice, they would submit a response, we would review the
adequacy of that.

Q. Okay. Prior to serving as assistant regional manager,
did you hold a different position at the Illincis EPA?

a. I was an inspector for approximately five years.

Q. and during the course of your employment with the
Tllincis EPA, approximately how many hazardous waste inspections
have you conducted in that time?

A. Over 200.

Q. &ind approximately how many solid waste inspections have
you conducted?

A. Total amount of inspections would be close to a

thousand, T would imagine.

10
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Q. Since you have been employed by the Illinois EPA, have
you received any additional training?

I, I received continuing education training in sampling,
negotiations, iI‘*ve been to the RCRA Hazardous Waste School for
Inspectors in Denver at the National Investigation Center,
USEPA's National Environmental Investigation Center.

C. Have you also attended some regulatory courses?

A, Yes, Midwest Environmental, the Enforcement Assocciations
Case for Regulatory Inspectors, working environmental crimes.

Q. I'm going to hand you what's been previously marked

People’s Exhibit Ne. 1 for identification, can you identify that

document?
A, That's my current resume.
C. Is it current through what date?
A, Teoday.
0. Ckay. Does this resume fairly and accurately show your

work experience and your educaticnal background?
A, Yes.
M3. CARTER: Ms. Hearing Officer, at this time the People
move for the admission of People's Exhibit 1 into evidence.
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Do the Respcondents have any
obijection?
MR. PRIOR: No.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: I'm admitting the People's Exhibit

11
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1, the resume of Michael Grant.
Q. {(By Mg. Carter) Are you generally familiar with the

Illinois Attorney General's Office case invelving John Prior?

A, Yes.
Q. Okay. How are you familiar with the case?
A. Some of the inspections that I have conducted at the

Gomper site are being discussed in this case today.

Q. and you refer to the Gomper site, is that the site
located at 140 Comper Street in Wamac?

AL Yes,

Q. Are you familiar with who operates the facility at the

Gomper site?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. And who is that?

. Joehn Prior,

0. Have you been to the site on -- do you recall exactly

how many occasions?

A. Four or five.

Q. Does that include a site visit from June of '967?

A. Yes.

Q. I'm going to hand you what's previcusly been marked as

People's Exhibit Ho. 2 for identification in just a moment. If I
could ask you to identify this document.

a. This 1s what's referred to as the state of Illinois Cpen

12
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Dump Inspection Checklist. This is our Open Dump Report.

Q. Okay. And what does the Illincis EPA make of this sort
of document?

L, We use it in conduction inspecticons of open dumps to
determina whether they're in compliance or not.

o. and who generally enters the information that's

contained in the Dump Inspection Reports?

A, The inspector.

Q. And when are these inspection documents typically
generated?

A. After we get back from the inspecticn back to the
office.

Q. And what does your Bureau do with the completed

Inspection Report?

A. 1f apparent violarions are alleged, then we send -- we
usualily send a letrter to the responsible party discussing ocur
findings.

Q. Does the Illincis EPA Bureau of Land also maintain the

Inspection Reports after they're completed?

A, Yes,

Q. They're maintained in your files?

A. In cur files, and then up to the headgquarters in
Springfield.

Q. Are these inspections regularly generated by the

13
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Illincis EPA Bureau of Land?

A. Tes.

Q. And in the ordinary course of business activity?

Al Yes.

Q. Okay. I see as well that -- did you take photographs on

site on July -- June 13th, 199672

A, Yes, I did.

Q. Okay. Bnd are you familiar with the site as it appears
on this date?

a. Yes.

Q. And do these photographs fairly and accurately show the

condition of the site?

A, Yes, they do.

0. Did you also complete a site sketch?

. Yeg, T did.

Q. And does the site sketch generally show the site on this
date?

Al Yes.

Q. And will the sketch assist you in describing your
observations?

AL Yes.

MS. CARTER: Okay. At this time the Pecple move for the
admission of People's No. 2 into evidence.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Have the Respondents seen a copy

Keefe Reporting Company
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of this?
MS. CARTER: I just handed it to them.
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Do the Respondents have any
objection to this document?
MR. MEZO: {Shakes head.)
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: We will go ahead and admit
Pecple's Exhibit 2.
Q. {(By Ms., Carter) Why was the inspection conducted?
Aa. We received a complaint regarding some dumping cf some
0il field waste down an abandoned mine shaft.
Q. Prior to golng on site, did you conduct a review of the
Bureau of Land's file for this site?
A, Yeah.
Q. Okay. And did you make any determinations on whether
the Gomper site possess any 1llincis EPA permits?
A, They did not have any permits with the Bureau of Land.
. Okay. Prior to going out there, did you have any

discussions with anybody about the conditicn of the site?

A, I contacted Alan Whitler with the Office of Mines and
Minerals.
C. Do you know what Mr. Whitler's position is with the

Office of Mine & Minerals?
A, Yeah, he's ~- my understanding is he's the inspector out

of the Centralia office that handles the ©il fields for that

15
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Q. and what did you discuss with Mr., Whitler?
A, I asked him if Mines and Minerals had issued any

disposal permits for the Gomper site.

Q. and had they issued any permits for disposal?

A. He said they had not.

Q. pid anybody accompany yod oh site?

A. Chris Cahnovsky with ocur office.

Q. Okay. What's Mr. Cahnovsky's position with yeour office?
L. Currently he's regional manager. At that time, he was

an inspector.

Q. Did anybody from Prior Oil Company acgompany you?

B, Cnce we got to the facility, we met with the Prior 0il
employee, Juvenile Hixenbaugh.

Q. Let's turn to your observations on site on this date.
Generally when you first arrived, what did you observe?

A, We observed a tanker truck backed up tc an opening in
the ground which appeared to be the mine shaft that was

referenced in the complaint that we recelived.

Q. Perhaps if I direct you to your photographs that would
assist you in vyour discussion. Turning te¢ Photograph No. 1, sir.

A, Yes.

0. What does that show?

A. It shows an opening of the apparent mine shaft with a

i6
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hose leading into it and oily substance arcund the end of the
hose.

Q. Turning te Photograph No. 4, what does that show?

A. That shows a picture of the actual vehicle that was

backed up te the shaft that had the hose attached to it.

Q. Was the shaft then directly then behind --

A, Yes.

Q. -- the process that's shown in Photograph 47

A, Yes, ma'am.

Q. Turning to Photograph No. 6, what does that show?
A. That shows the rear end of the truck and the hose

leading from the rear end cf the truck going down intc the shaft.

Q. And what about Photograph No. 8, what deoces that show?

A. That just shows the name of the truck, of who owned the
truck.

Q. And what does that say, sir?

L. Pricy 0il.

Q. Did you gquesticn Mr. Hixenbaugh about your observations

concerning the truck and the mine shaft?

A, Yes.

Q. And what did he state?

A, He indicated that they were just discharging storm water
collected from tank batteries.

Q. Ckay. Now while you were on site, did you also notice

17
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any tires cut there?

AL Yes, we did notice a pile of tires.

¢. and what kind of tires were they? Were they on ¢or off
rim?

A, The majority of them were off rim, and they appeared to

be truck tires.

Q. Okay. What's the significance of tires being off rims?

A, At that time, used tires are regulated off the rim as
there's regulations specific on how they must be stored and
handled.

0. Do tires off rim alse provide a potential ground for

breeding of vectors?

A, Yes, they pose a threat for mosguitoes.

Q. And how 1is that?

A. They accumulate the water, and mosquitoes use this water
to breed.

Q. Are there photographs that document your tires on site?

A. Yes, Photographs No. 2 and No. 3.

Q. While you were on site, Mr., Grant, did you make any

other observations?

A. We did observe a couple of drums that appeared to
contain oil. They were not labeled, and they were not closed,
and they appeared to be standing arcund the areas of the drum.

Q. Should these drums have been labeled?

18
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AL Yes.

0. What should they have been labeled with?

A, Used oil.

0. Okay. Is there a photograph that depicts that
operation?

A, Photo No. 5.

Q. Now I think you mantioned that there was a considerable
amount of stained oil in the area of the drums, what does that
indicate to you?

A. That it either had been spilled when the drums were
filled or the drums had been leaking -- with them being open,
rain water could cause the 0il to be released from the drums.

Q. Subseguent to your wvisit on June 13th, did you discuss
your findings with anybody?

A. Yes. We went and talked to Alan Whitler regarding what
we had observed at the site.

0. Did you guestion him about Mr. Hixenbaugh's statement

that they were simply discharging clean storm water?

A. Yes.
C. And what was Mr. Whitler's response?
A, He stated that was -- that was prohibited, that that

cannot be discharged in this manner.
Q. Do you have an opinion concerning your cbservations of

June 13th of the Gomper site?

Keefe Reporting Company

19



10

11

12

14

15

le

17

18

19

20

21

23

24

Al Yes, this was in violation of the Envirconmental
Protection Act. And discharging of this material into an
abandeonad mine shaft, ceontribute to the pessibility of ground

water contamination.

Q. Did you return to the site in August of 20007

A. Yes.

0. Did anybody accompany you during that visit?

A Chris Cahnovsky.

Q. Okay. Did you return to the site in Neovember of 20007
A. Yes.

Q. I'm going to hand you what's been previously marked as

People's Exhibit We. 4 f[or identificaticn. 1'11 ask you to
identify it in Just a moment. Can you identify that document for
me?

A. Yes., This 1s another Open Dump Checklist similar to the
one T discussed from June of '96.

Q. Okay. And what -- Did you return to the site in
November of 20007

a. Our office received a complaint about open burning at
the Gomper site.

Q. Okay. MNow I think you just menticned, sir, that this
document was generally produced in the same manner that you
produced your ‘96 Inspection Report?

A, Yes, ma'tam,

20

Keefe Reporting Company



10

11

12

13

14

15

i6

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Q. Okay. And did you take photographs while you were on
site on November 3rd, 20007

L. Yes, ves, I did.

0. Okay. And are you familiar with the site as it appeared
on this day?

Al Yes.

Q. And does this photograph fairly and accurately show the

condition on site?

A, Yes.

Q. 1s there a site sketch as well that you generated?

A, Yes.

O. Does the site sketch generally show the nature of the

site in November of 20007

A, Yes, ma'am.

Q. And will it assist you in explaining your observations?
A, Yes.

Q. And was this Inspection Memo generated in the ordinary

course of business activity?
Al Yes.
MS. CARTER: At this time the People move for the admission
of Pecople's 4 into evidence.
HEARING CFFICER SUDMAN: Do the Respcondents have any
objections? Hearing none, I will admit People's Exhibit No. 4.

Q. {By Ms, Carter) Okay. T believe you menticned that you

21
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were on site responding to a site complaint; is that correct?
A. Correct.
. Okay. Can you tell me a2 little bit more about the

complaint that the Tllincis EPA received?

A. We received a complaint concerning some open burning at
the site. I believe we also received a complaint from the fire
chief.

0. Ckay. The fire chief from what district?

A. Centralia Fire Protection District.

o. Okay. And did they have any concerns about what was

happening out there?

A Just with the burning.

Q. Ckay. Did anybody accompany you on site?

A, Yes.

Q. And who was that?

R. Ken Mensing, who at that time was my regicnal manager,

and Jeff Benbenek with the Bureau of 2ir Polluticn out of our
Ceollinsville Fileld Office.

0. Let's turn a littie bit more to your observations of
November 3rd., What did you observe out there?

A, When we arrived, we observed a -- what appeared tc be a
trench that had been dug and had smoldering. It looked like oil
and straw that had been used for absorbant.

Q. Did you notice that there was any suoke or not?

Keefe Reporting Company
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AL Yes, 1t was smoking at the time of the inspection.

0. Are there photographs that document your observations?

Al Yes.

0. Maybe if I could just direct your attention to
Photographs No. 1 and Weo. 2, what did -~ what do those show?

A. Those are photos of the area where the material was
burning.

0. And Pheotograph No. 37

B, Three is a similar picture, 3just taken from a further
distance.
Q. If T could just dirvect your attention to Photograph No.

4, with the material that was burning, was it straw or was it
something different?
A, It looked like straw and maybe oil and garbage, plastic

bags that had contained some material.

Q. And can you see that in Photograph No. 4, 5 and 62
A, Yes.
Q. Okay. Directing your attention to Photographs No. 7 and

8, what do these show?

A, That's material that appears to have been dumped on the
ground, was cil and contaminated straw, but this was not in the
area that was smoldering at the time of the inspection.

Q. Where was this area, sir?

a. Adjacent to 1it.

23
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Q. While you were on site, was this matter discussed with

Mr. Prior?

A. Yes.
Q. What was stated?
A. Mr. Prior had indicated that he had instructed some

employees to clean out an area in one of his buildings, and that
this was what happened to the material.

0. Did Prior make any indication on whether or not he
recognized that he was in violation?

A, Yeah. When he found ocut his employees had dumped the
material on the ground, he was concerned about a rain event and
wanted the material burned.

Q. Ckay. Do you have an opinion concerning your
observations of November 3rd?

A. Yes, this was violation of the Environmental Protection
Act. Open burning emits hazardous air pollutants from the

products of combustion.

Q. Did you return to the site subsequent te November of
20007

AL Yes.

Q. Approzimately how many occasions?

A, Twice, T believe.

Q. Does this includes a December 2000 site visit?

A, Yes.

24

Keefe Reporting Company



10

11

1z

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Q. Does it alse include a May 2003 site visit?

B, Yes.
0. Who accompanied the site visit with you?
A, Chris Cahnovsky.

MS. CARTER: T have no more questions for this witness.
HEARRING OFFICER SUDMAM: My. Prioy, would you like to
cross-examine this witness?
MR. PRIOR: Yes, I'd like to ask a couple of guestions.
HEARING COFFICER SUDMAN: Okay.
CROSS-EXAMINAT ION

QUESTICONS BY MR. PRIOR:

Q. I'm sorry. Your name again?
Al Mike Grant.
Q. Mr. Grant, you sald that this material was dumped into

mine shaft?
A. Apparently an abandoned mine shaft.
Q. Was that -- There is a mine shaft, however, the State

plugged that mine before this date of June 13th when you

inspected it. Now there is a -- there was a small pift there that

was used with the incinerator --
MS. CARTER: Ms. Hearing Officer, I'm going to have Lo
object unless there is a question pending te Mr. Grant.
HERARING OFFICER SUDMAN: 1'11 note your cobijecticn, but I

sense a guestion pending so I'm going to allow them a little
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further latitude because they're pro se. Please continue.
MR. PRIOR: Does that mean I can go ahead and ask the
question?
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Yes.

Q. {(By Mr. Pricr}) Then you don't know if there was a mine
shaft or not? It was a hole in the ground or something?

B. My understanding is our investigation got the abandoned
Mines peopls to close that shaft after our visit.

MR. PRIOR: I disagree with that. <Can I produce some
evidence at another time to show —-
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: At another time, yes.

Q. (By Mr. Prior) Let's see. The truck that was sitting
there with my name on it, and the pictures indicate that, did
anybody say who put that truck there or why?

A. Mr. Hixenbaugh just indicated when we asked what was

happening, he said we were pumping storm water from tank

batteries.
Q. Tt also says into an old mine shaft, he told you that?
A, I believe so. I'm not sure he knew where, what the area
Was.

MR. PRIOR: Well, then I need to present some evidence at a
later time a well.
HEARING QFFICER SUDMAN: When you testify, you can present

all of your evidence. Right now, this is just to clarify any
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guestions about what Mr. Grant said in his testimony.

MRE. PRIOR: But I don't have evidence today with me. I had
not seen this. I didn't know it existed. I didn't know.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Well, we'll be meeting tomorrow as
well.,

MR, PRIOR: I didn't know Mr. Grant had spoke to
Mr. Hizxenbaugh. I wasn't aware of that.

HEARING QOFFICER SUDMAN: Well, you can testify to that. Do
you have any questions to Mr. Grant about what he said?

MR. PRICR: Yes.

Q. {(By Mr. Prior) You talked about truck tires that was
adjacent to the site. That site does have -- did have old tires
there. They're gone now, but it did have tires there. But there
is also a trucking and salvage operation right next to it that
used that same area. But did anybedy tell you that those tires

were my tires?

A, Mo, My understanding that these tires were on your
property.
Q. Well, ockay. You don't know for sure though that those

tires were on my property?

A. Yes, as I believe, they were on your property. That was
our understanding.

Q. I just don't reccgnize that particular photo, that's --

Who was the complainer then?
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MS., CARTER: Objection.

HEARING QFFICER SUDMAN: On what grounds, Ms. Carter?

MS. CARTER: There is an informant privilege in the state
of Tllinois. T do have case law on the matter if T can find it,
Ms. Hearing Officer, there is extensive case law in the state of
Illineis that maintains if the defendant -- if the'defendant isg
simply saeking the information just to have knowledge as to whom
the complainer is and it deesn't serve to facilitate his defense,
there is no right tc that information. And we are objecting on
the basis on informant's privilege.

HEARING CFFICER SUDMAN: I'm going to sustain her objection
for now. I den't think that information is crucial right now for
your case,

MR. FRIOR: I think it will be before it's over. And maybe
I can ask another question and see if it helps.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Okay. Why don't we de¢ that.

Q. (By Mr. Prior} Was the complainer the same complainer?

A. Are we talking about the '96 investigation?

Q. All of them.

A. I don't know -— I don't recall who complained in '"96.

Q. Was the complainer the same complainer more than one
time?

A. I'm only aware of who complained on the November 2000

inspection that I was on.
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Q. I'm sure it was the same complainer. And I wanted to
establish that and say that isn't it odd that the complaint
always happened right at the perfect time for you to be there?

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Mr. Prior, you will have an
opportunity to present all of your evidence in testimony. The
cross-examination, as I sald before, is Jjust to clarify anything
that Mzr. Grant has already sald. If you don't have any more
gquestions for him, basically you're giving testimony right now,
and you will have an opportunity to do that, kut now 1isn't the
right time.

MR. PRIOR: Okay.

Q. {(By Mr. Prior) Is the site cleaned up now?

A. I believe sc. That was --

. You believe so?

A. The May 2003 visit that I conducted with Mr. Cahncvsky.
0. You was real sure about the other things but you're not

sure about that?

A, I know the shaft has been closed in the area where the
cpen dumping and open burning occurred appeared to have been
remediated, and I believe you submitted documentation to that.

Q. Turning to the trench, burning -- open burning of the
straw, oily straw, I believe it stated somewhere, did they say
where that straw come from?

A. I think you told us it came from inside your shop.
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Q. But beyond that, why was it there in the first place?

A, Oh, it was a clean-up from a spill. I'm not sure if it
was at the Gomper site or at one of your other facilities.

0. Ckay. And -- and that is cleaned up as well?

A. Yes.

MR. PRIOR: CQkay. No more guestions.

HEARING CFFICER SUDMAN: Mr. Mezo, do you have any other
questions?

MR. MEZC: Ne, no.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMBAN: If there are no further questions
for Mr. Grant, you may step down. Thank you. These are yours.
I have copies. The People may call their next witness.

MS. CARTER: The Pecple call Chris Cahnovsky.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Would you swear him in, please?

CHRISTOPHER CAHNGQVSIKY,
called as a witness herein, having been first duly sworn,
deposeth and saith as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION

QUESTICNS BY MS. CARTER:

Q. Please state your name.

A. Christopher Neal Cahnovsky.

Q. Can you tell me about your pest-high school education,
sir?

A. I graduated with a bachelor's degree in animal science
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from Scuthern Illinois University in 1988, 1 received a master's
degree in environmental science from Southern Illinols University

at Edwardsville in 1993.

Q. With whom are you employed?

A. The State of Illinoils Enviromnmental Protection Agency.
Q. And what is your current position with the Illinois EPA?
A. I currently hold the position of a senior public service

administrator, which is more commonly referred to as a regional

manager.

Q. And ¢an you tell me a bit about your duties as regiocnal
manager?

A. As regional manager I supervise seven inspectors and one

student intern. Our charge 1s to enforce the Illinoils
Environmental Protection Act and to enforce and chserve
compliance with the Illinoils Pollution Control Beoard regulations
for nine counties, both solid -- solid waste, hazardous waste,
tires, infectiocus medical waste. We conduct inspections at
permitted facilities as well as unpermitted open dump sites and
hazardous waste facilities.

Q. I think you said you supervise staff as part of your

employment with the Illincis EPA?

A. Yes.
Q. What sort of review do vou do with your staff?
A, Well, I review all of the reports before they're
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submitted te the Springfield office and before they're mailed to
the general public, and ensure that they meet the policies of the
Bureau of Land and the Section 31 processing and the Illinois
Environmental Protecticon Act is being followed.

Q. As a regional manager for the Bureau of Land, do you

also go out and conduct inspections?

A, Yes, I1've been conducting inspections since May of 1990.
Q. How long have you served as regional manager?

A. A little over two years.

Q. aAnd I believe you sald that ycu were conducting

inspections in May of 19907

A. Yes.

C. It fair to say you were a field inspector prior?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. And can vyou tell me a little but about the type

of investigations that yeou conducted in the past?

A, I started out doing used tire inspections and
inspections of places that generate used tires and used tire
recycling facilities as well as open dumps, unregulated trash
dumps, and then I moved into conducting inspecticns at facilities
that generate, transport, treat, store and dispose of hazardous
waste, both permitted and permitted exempt facilities.

Q. Do you -- do you also provide assistance to the Illinois

State Police?
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L. Yes. At times T have provided technical assistance for
the -- to solidify their criminal cases.

Q. and have you also assisted emergency response in
responding to certain releases?

A. Yes. At some peints in times I was the Collinsville
regional backup for the Emergency Response Unit. When they were
short personnel, I provided back-up service and was an emergency
responder with them.

Q. Okay. During the course of your employment, have you
also had cccasion to review remediation plans?

A, Yes, I have. I review closure plans and ground water
plans and compliance commitment agreements that where clean-up
rlans have been part of the compliance commitment agreement.

Q. 3ince you've peen employed by the Agency, have you had
the opportunity to participate in any training?

A. Yes. In 1895 I received my Certified Hazardcus
Materials Manager Certification which is a national -- actually
an international professional certification for the management of
hazardous materials, as well as I have attended several hazardous
waste courses, Department of Transportation harzardous materials
courses, inspector courses for dealing with civil inspections as
well as civil inspector lcoking at c¢riminal type inspections.

Q. Have you also had the opportunity to attend courses

provided by the Midwest Environmental Enforcement Association?
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Al Yes, I've conduct -- I've attended several of their
training. The regulatory course, the criminal investigator
course, the two other periodic conferences and the petroleum
refinery course.

C. Are you a member of some entity called the Gateway
Soclety of Hazardous —-

A. Materials Manager. Yes, I currently serve as past
president. I've been on the board of directors serving as
director at large, secretary and president. That's one of the
largest envircnmental groups in the St. Louis area.

Q. And what does that grcup serve to do?

Al We are a educational group, a networking group for
environmental professionals. We're made up of industry,
education, government, and the consulting fields. We have right
now about 155 paid members, and which about half of them are
certified members cf the CHMM certification.

Q. Since you've been employed by the Illinols EPA, can you
glve me an estimate of how many inspections you've conducted?

A. About 1,000 inspections.

Q. Mr. Cahnovsky, I'm going to hand you what's been marked
as Pecple's Exhibit 5. Do you recognize that document?

A. Yes, I do.

0. And what is that?

A. It is a copy of my resume.
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Q. Is it current through the present?
. Yes, 1t is.
Q. Does 1t accurately reflect your work experience and your
educational background?
Al Yes, it does.
MS. CARTER: At this time the People move for the admissicon
of People's % into evidence.
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Do the Respondents have any
objection? Hearing none, I will admit Pecple's Exhibit 5.
Q. (By Ms. Carter}; Are you familiar with the Illinois

Attorney General's case involving John Prior?

A. Yes, I am.
Q. And how are you familiar with 1it?
A. I am familiar with it because several of the inspections

I conducted at that site have been referred to the Attorney
General'S Office for enforcement, and I'm familiar with it
through the documents that have been submitted to us by the
Attorney General's Office.

Q. And when you refer to that site, are you referring to
the 140 Gomper Street site in Wamac?

A. Yes, I am.

Q. Are you familiar with who operates a facility at 140
Gomper Street?

A. Yes, 1 am.
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Q. and who 1is that?

. Prior Qil Company, John Prior.

Q. Okay. Have you been to the site on approximately eight
occasions?

A. That scunds about right.

Q. Okay. Dees i1t include a site visit of June '967?

A, Yes, it does.

Q. Ckay. Did anybody from Illinois EPA accompany you cn

that site visit?

A. Mike Grant.

0. Ckay. Did you then return to the site in August of
20007

A, Yes, I did.

Q. It was on about four occasions in August?

A. Yes. It was -~ it was -~ four pretty close together.

Q. Prior to golng on site, did you review the Illinois EFA

files for this facility?

h. Yes, I did. Yes, 1 did.

Q. And did you determine during the course of your review
whether the site conducts any Tllincis EPA permits to conduct a
waste storage cor waste facility operxation?

A, My review concluded that 104 Gomper Street possess no
permits from the Illinois EPA for the land dispesal.

Q. I heard you say 104 Gomper Street. Did you mean to
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say —-
A, I'm sorry, 140 Gomper Street.
Q. Did you make any determination as to whether the site

possessed any Illinois EPA permits to operate and develop a

landf£ill?
a. Mo, it did not.
0. I'm going to hand you what's been previously marked as

People's Exhibit No. 3 for identification. If you can identify
that for me.

A, It is an Open Dump Checklist. There's a narrative
assoclated with that, a sample receipt form, a chain of custody,
an analytical data, site map photographs and a Violation Notice.
And this package is what I would refer as an Inspection Package.

Q. Does this Inspection Package seek to document your
observaticons while on site?

. Yes, it does.

0. Who enters the information that typically would appear

in an Inspection Package?

a. The inspector deces.

Q. And when is that generally completed?

A. Upon returning to the office after an inspection.

Q. Okay. What does the Illincis EPA do once you've created

this document?

. Cnece this document's created, it is reviewed by the
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regional manager to make sure that it conforms with the policy of
the Agency. A copy 1s made for our division files in
Springfield, a copy for our regional files and a copy goes to the
respondents.

Q. Okay. Was this Inspection Packat made under the
procedures that you typically follow that you Jjust described?

AL Yes.

Q. Okay. BAnd was the Inspection Packet generated in the

ordinary course of business activity?

A. Yes,

Q. I think you also said there's photographs attached to
it?

A. Yes, there is.

Q. Okay. Did you take photographs while you were on site

on August Z22nd, 20007

A, Yes, I did.

Q. What about on August 31st, 20007

A. Yes, 1 did.

0. And are you familiar with the site as it appeared on

these dates?

A, Yes, T am.

Q. And do these photographs fairly and accurately show the
condition of the site on these dates?

A. Yes, they did.
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Q. Did you complete a site sketch for the facility as you
observed it on August 22nd?
Al Yes.
Q. &nd does the site sketch generally show the site as 1t
appeared on that date?
A. Yes.
Q. And did you also complete a site sketch for the facility
on August 31st?
A. Yes, I did.
Q. And dees it generally show the site as it appeared on
that date?
A. Yes,
MS. CARTER: At this time People move for the admissicn of
People's 3 into evidence.
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Do the Respondénts have any
objection? I den't have a People's Exhibit 3.
MS. CARTER: I'm walking arcund and T'm not paying
attention.
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: That's all right. I will admit
Pecople's Exhibit 3.
Q. (By Ms. Carter) Why did you conduct a site visit on
August 22nd?
A. Well, it was -- I had a complaint, an unrelated

complaint at an adjoining property. And while I was
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investigating that complaint, I noticed there was a pit. A&And so
I walked over behind the 140 Gomper Street site and I observed a
pit.

Q. Okay. And what was in the pit?

A. What was in the pit? There was a -- 1t was an old BBQ
grill, car parts, plastic centainers, paint cans, clothes, used
0il, absorbant pads, landscape waste.

Q. How big was the pit?

A. The pit was about 20 feet long by 10 feet wide by
approximately 7 feet deep.

0. Outside of those items that you Jjust described, did it

also contain any sort of liquid?

B, Yes, it contained a large pool of oil at one end of the
pit.

Q. How much o©il was in the pit?

A, It looked like it could have been about 70 gallons.

Q. Did it coat the walls of the pit?

A, Yes.

Q. Did it ceoat the bottom of the pit?

A. Yes, it did.

Q. Okay. Are there photographs that document your

observations of the pit?
. Yes, there are.

Q. If I could direct your attention to photograph --
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starting with Photograph No. 172

Al Yes.,

Q. What does that show?

. That shows the pit and the waste inside of it.

0. And is Photograph No. 2 the same but more of a close-up?
A. Yes, number 2 is a more detail shot of number 1.

Q. Is the item towards the front of Photograph Wo. 2 the

BBQ grill that you referenced?

AL Yes, the BBQ grill, the car parts and some other
material.
Q. If I could direct your attention to Photograph Neo. 3 and

No. 4, but mere particularly number 47

A. Uh-huh.

Q. What does that show?

B That shows a pocl of cil and oil contaminated soil in
the deepest part of the pit.

Q. Did yeu have any environments or concerns regarding the
0ll and the waste at the pit?

A. Yes, I did. I was concerned that the oil in the pit
would ceontaminate ground water, cause scll contaminaticn,
contaminate the scil and potentially be, if it was a flammable
material, pose a fire rvisk., And if it was wvolatile enough and it
volatilized out, it would put volatile compounds into the air.

Q. After you made these observations, did you subsequently
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walk back to the office on site?
A Yes, I did.
Q. Bbout how far was the pit from the office?

A. About 150 yards.

0. When you were in the office, did you meet up with
anybody?

A. Yes, T met with Mr. John Prior.

Q. hnd then did you subsequently have a conversation with

Mr. Prior?

A. Yes. After we met, we walked back to the pit and 1T
asked him, you know, what he knew about it. And he stated that
he had no idea that the pit was there or how the waste got in the
pit. He didn't really knew anything about it. And I asked him
if it was crude o0il or used motor oil in the pit, and he thought
it was toco black to bhe crude oil.

Q. Okay. Did you have discussion with Mr. Prior what
needed to be done to clean-up the pit?

A, Yes, I said that the -- it needed to be -- he said, oh,
he would immediately clean it up and take the dirt. And I stated
that the dirt and everything needed to go te the landfill.
However, I wanted to make sure that it was not a hazardous waste
so I needed to get a sample of it prior to him taking it to the
landafill. 1t was okay him for him to dig it up and to

conscolidate it and put it into a container, but we neceded test
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results to make sure 1t was not hazardous, and it could go tc the

landfiil.

Q. Did you return to the site on August 23rd?

A, Yes, I did.

Q. Was that the sample as you just discussed?

A, Yes. 1 sampled the material in the pit, and T noticed
it was -- the material was about 8 to 10 inches deep and had a

kerogene like odor.

Q. Ckay. How did you identify the sample?

A, T identified the samples by our Bureau of Land
procedures for identifying samples. X meaning special, 2 meaning
waste and 01, meaning the number 1, the first sample. X201.

Q. Can you tell me how you took sample X2017

A, I took the sample using a 32-cunce glass jar. And I
dipped the 3Z2-ounce glass Jar into the waste, and then T poured
it intco my sampling jars. I used two 2-gunce jars for velatile
samples and one 3Z-ounce jar for semi-volatile sample and one

9-cunce jar for a flash point sample.

Q. When you say flash point, what does that mean?

A, Flash point material will flash but will not sustain
ignition.

Q. Okay. And I don't know i1f T asked you this before, and

I apologize if 1 did. When you say volatile, what does that

mean?
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A. There's a certain group of chemicals that are considered
volatile crganic compounds, and there's thousands of those types
of compounds. 2And then there's another list which are considered

semi~volatile, not guite as volatile as the volatile ones.

Q. Okay. Once you took the samples, what did you do with
them?
AL Once I tock the samples, I sealed them with evidence

tape and I pack them for shipment to our organlics lab in
Springfield, Illincis, and I fellowed the Agency's chain of
custody and sampling procedure then.

Q. And what analysis did you request of your sample?

A. I requested flash point, Polychlorobiphenyls, PCBs, the
toxic characteristic leachate procedure for velatile organic
compounds, the toxic characteristic leachate for semi-volatile

organic campounds.

Q. Now does that go by the abbreviation TCLP?

A. TCLP,

Q. That will help me out. Okay. What are each of those,
tLhe PCR?

A PCB are Polychlorinated Biphenyls that are known as

human carcinogens, and they're some nasty stuff.
Q. and what about TCLP?
A. TCLP 1s actually is a test that mimics how a material

will behave in a landfill. And the regulation gives a list of
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compounds that we look for and a target number, basically a
concentration, &And if you test a material and your TCLP comes
back and the concentration is above what's in the list, that
means ~- that means it meets the definition of a hazardous waste.

Q. Okay. Did you make any other requests for analysis of
these samples?

AL Yes, I did. I asked -- There was some confusion whether
the c¢il in the pit was motor o0il, used crank case motor oil or
whether 1t was crude ©il, unrefined oil from an oil field
production waste. And I asked the 1lab to run it against crude

01l standards and motor oil standards.

0. Did you ultimately receive back from the lab sample
results?

A, Yes, I did.

Q. and did they reference the same site and sample that you

toock in August of 20007

A, Yes, they did.
Q. And what did the sample results ultimately indicate?
A, The sample results indicated several things. First, it

indicated that a flash point of 139 degrees Fahrenheit. The
regulatory limit for flash point is 140 degrees. So this is one
cf those where if it's below the regulatory limit, it's
considered an ignitable waste. So which msans it has a flash

point lower than what —-- what the regulations reguire. 8o that
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tells me that it is an ignitable waste, and it meets the

definition of a DOT flammable waste.

Q. Okay.
a. The results also show that it had below detectable
limits of PCPs, so the sample contained —-- if it contained PCRs,

we didn't see it --

Q. Okay.
A. ~- because 1t was below detectable limits. It also
showed that -- that the ~- it was compared to crude cil

standards, and it appeared that the crude o1l standards that --
it had the same pattern and it matched that of the crude oil
standards. So it was crude o0il and not motor oil.

Q. Did you also find that the sample contained other
organic materials?

A. Yes. The sample contained Toluene, Ethylbenzene
Benzelethelene, Xylene, and other Polynuclear Aromatic and 2, 4,
& Tribromophenol.

Q. What is the significance of these results to you?

A. The significance of it that it was crude o0il and not
motor oil. Because i1f «— if it was motor oil, this would be
considered a hazardous waste. But since 1t was crude o0i1l, there
is a regulatory exemption for c¢il field production waste and that
exempts it from a definition from a hazardous waste. It also

tells me that the chemical compounds that are found in here are
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hazardous constituents and pose a threat to the environment.
Q. okay. You mentioned a couple of different things there.

It exempts in the definition of hazardous waste?

A.  Right,
Q. Is it exempt in the definition of a special waste?
A. No, it i1s neot. It is still considered a solid waste.

And in the state of Tllinois, and since it is a pollution control
waste, i.e., a c¢lean-up waste, it will meet the definition of a
special waste and regquire manifesting and analysis to get it into

the landfill.

Q. And befcore you -- before you were discussing flash
points?

A. Right.

C. And that was 139 degrees Fahrenheit?

A, Yes.

0. Were you concerned that the material might be flammable?

A, Yeah, it was flammable, vyes.

Q. Ckay. A&nd alsc did this pose any threat to ground
water?

k. Yes. There -- With a liquid being discharged in and

onto the ground, there is definitely a substantial threat to
contaminating the ground water. Obviocusly it contaminated the
soil. And with the veolatile organics, it will release volatile

organic compounds intoc the atmosphere.
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Q. After this, did you return to the site on August 29th,

20007
A, Yes, I did.
Q. Did anybody accompany you?

A, John Singen {phonetic).

Q. Who is that?

A. He is one -- ancther regional inspector.

Q. What did you observe on site?

A. The site remained unchanged since the August 22nd
inspection.

o. Did you have a conversation with Mr. Prior while you

were oubt there?

A. Yes, I did. He told me he would begin the excavation on
Rugust 31st, and he also told me that he had the pit dug over a
month ago to bury concrete.

Q. Now did that conversation differ with what he stated to
you on August 22nd concerning the pit?

A. Yes, it did. In the August 22nd inspection, he told me

he didn't know anything about the pit.

Q. Did you observe any concrete in the pit?
A. No, I did not observe any ceoncrete in the pit.
Q. Did you return to the site on August 31st?

A. Yes, I did.

. Why did you go out there on the 31st?
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A, I returned on the 31lst because Mr. Priocr called me on
the 30th and said he had dug the pit on the previous day, and I
wanted to go out and make sure and verify that was true.

. What did you cbhserve on site?

A, 1 observed that the waste had been removed from the pit,

and it was put in a 20-vyard roll-off box on the back of the

truck.

Q. Did you make any additional observations while you were
on site?

A, Yes, I did. ©On the southwest sight of the shop I

observed two 30-gallon drums that looked like they contained used
motor ©0il, and neither drum was labeled with the words used oil
per the regulation. And there was a large amcunt of used oil on

the top of the drums and around the drums and on the ground.

Q. What did that indicate to you, sir?

n. That indicated there was poor management of the used oil
and poor housekeeping practices. And there were violations of
the Environmental Protection Act and violations of the -- both
regulations.

0. Did it indicate to you that the drums could be leaking?

A. They could be leaking.

Q. Okay.

A, It looked like more —- it was more like was overfill,

that they were open and rain water was getting in. And since oil
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floats on water, the oil was being forced out of the drum.

Q. Did you have a conversation with anybody on site about
those drums?

A, Yes. 1 went to the cffice and I spoke with a Jenny
Dining and explained to her that the drums were leaking and
released oill and that needed to be cleaned up. And I teld her
that the oil could be scraped up and put in the same roll-off box
as the oil from the -- from the pit. And she said she would tell
the guys in the shop.

Q. Do yeu have an opinion, an environmental opinion,
cencerning your observations of August 2000, the Gomper site?

A, Yes, I do. In my opinicn there was a threat to the
environment, a potential ground water contamination, there was
scil contamination from the drums, there would have definitely
been a threat of surface water contamination during the storm
water runoff. Because they were volatile compounds in the crude
©il that was in the pit, there was definitely air pollution
concerns with the veolatilization of the chemicals.

Q. Did the Illincis EPA subseguently send Mr. Prior a

Viclation Notlice?

h. Yes, we did.
Q. Okay. What's a Violation Notice?
A, A Viclation Notice, pursuant to Section 31 of the

Illinecis Environmental Protection Act, which serves to notify the
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Q. What information is specificelly include in a Violation
Notice?
A. There is a letter attached to the Viclation Notice which

spells out the Sectlon 31 procedures and how to respond to the
Viclaticon Notice and the time frames required to respond. It
also has an Attachment A to it which spells out the alleged
viclations and what —-- which each viglation it is and the reason
it was cited. And alsc contains a section called a Suggested
Resolution Section which outlines the steps the Agency expects
the responsikle party to take to bring the facility back into
compliance. And also there is further information on how to
respond.

Q. Does it also include the Inspection Packet that we
discussed before?

A. Yes. The checklist, the narrative, the site diagram are
typically what 1s attached to the Violation Notice. In this
case, there was also the sample results should have been
attached.

C. In this instance, was there a Suggested Resolutiocn

attached to the Violation Notice?

B, Yes.
Q. Sent teo Mr. Prior?
A. Yes, there was.
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Q. And what did that include?

A. The Suggested Resolutions included immediately cease all
open dumping, immediately label all containers with the words
used oil, containers containing used o0il with the words used oil,
immediately begin cleaning up the release from the twe drums of
used il on the southwest side of the shop.

I asked that by December 14th, 2000, that Prior 0il Company
submit documentation showing what steps are taken to clean up
crude o0il in the pit. And once this waste is no longer liquid,
i.e., that's it sclidified and there's no free liquids in it, and
may be disposed as a special waste. However, a Special Waste
Manifest needs to accompany it to the landfill. &nd I ask that a
Hazardous Waste Determination be conducted on the two drums of
used c©il in the sheop, and at a mipimum, they must lcok for flash

point, and that all waste be removed from the site by December

14th, 2000.
Q. Did you return to the site on December 5th, 200072
A. Yes, I did.
Q. I'm going to hand you what's been previously marked

People's Exhibit 6 for identification. I'il1 ask you to identify

it. Can you identify that document for me?

L. It is an Open Dump Checklist for December 5th, 2000,
Q. Why did you return to the site on December 5th?
. I received a complaint that the cil well development
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waste was being dumped in a hole behind the old incinerator that
was located behind the Prior 0il Company shop.

Q. Did anybody accompany yon on site?

. Yes, Mike Grant and Alan Whitler and another gentleman

from the Illinois Department of Natural Resources.

Q. Who 1s that? Was it Mr. Price?

. Charlie Price, vyes.

Q. Is he a well inspector?

A, Yes.

Q. This December 5th, 2000, Inspection Memo, was it made by

you under the procedures that we previously discussed with the
August 2000 memo?

A. Yes, it was.

0. Okay. And it was generated in the ordinary course of

business activity?

. Yes, it was.

O. Did you take photographs on site on December 5th?

A, Yes, I did.

C. And are you familiar with the site as it appeared on

that date?

A, Yes, 1 am.

0. Do these photographs fairly and accurately show the
condition of the site on December 5th?

A, They do.
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Q. What about a site sketch, did you complete one of those?

A. Yes.

Q. Does it generally show the conditicon of the site on that
date?

A, Yes.

MS. CARTER: At this time the Pecple move for the admission
of People's No. ¢ into evidence.
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Do the Respondents have any
objection? Hearing none, I will admit Feople's Exhibit No. 6.
MS. CARTER: Thank you.
Q. {(By Mg. Carter} When you first arrived on site on
December 5th, what did you observe?
a. I observed an oil stained area about 100 feet socuth of
the railrecad tracks.
Q. Did you notice any vegetation in the area?
. Yes., It looked 1like the ©il had been dumped sometime

ago due to the growth of the vegetation.

Q. Are there photographs that document your observations?
A. Yes, Photes 1 and 2 show that particular area. It leooks
like the -- the material -- that a truck backed in and discharged

the material there because it appears to be like tire tracks.

Q. Is it the dark material in Photograph 1 and 27
A. Yes.
Q. I think before you menticned that you had met
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Mr. Whitler and Mr. Price out there?

A. Yes.

Q. Did they indicate to you what observations they had made
prior to your arrival?

o, Well, they had told me that Mr. Prior did not have any
permits to haul oil field waste.

Q. Okay. Did you make any other cbservations on site on
that day?

AL Yes, 1 did. We went -- We walked, not only did we see
the o0il staining waste that was about 100 feet scuth of the
track, we alsoc observed that there was oil within the -- within
some rubkle. There was concrete rubble and denss vegetation
right next to the incinerator, and we observed vehicle tracks
leading to those concrete slabs. And I observed a low area
within the concrete area and vegetation where it appeared that
oily waste had been discharged. BAnd it appeared that a hose was
used to get into this area and discharge this material. And the
gentleman from the -- Mr. Whitler from the Illinois Department of
Natural Resocurces, he estimated that about three parrels, or 126
gallons, of ¢il field waste had been discharged in this area.

Q. Was there a tanker truck on site?

A, There was a tanker truck. There was a Pricr 011 Company
tanker truck on site.

Q. If T could direct your attention to Pheotegraph No. 10.
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What does that show?
4. That shows the concrete rubble that I referred

previously, and the general area where the 0lily waste was

discharged.
Q. Was that in the middle of the photograph there?
A, Yes.
Q. What's the red and white structure behind that?
A. That 15 -- I believe the name of the company is Fisher

Metal Fabrications.

Q. Okay. What about Photograph No. 12, what does that
show?
. That is essentially the same picture as Photo 10, but a

more close-up view which shows some oil field waste on the right
-- if you're locoking at the picture, there's a concrete -- piece
of concrete to the right at the bottom of that, there's scome oily
material on the ground.

C. What does Photograph We. 14 show?

A. Photograph 14 shows the tanker truck.
Q- what do Photographs No. 3 through 5 show?
A Three shows -- 1it's a picture of the vegetation with the

-- ITf you lock in the very middle of the picture, there's some
oily material on the ground. If you lcok at Picture No. 4, it
shows there's olly material actually on the branches and the

vegetation. Picture No. 5 is the same picture.
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Q. And where are these photographs taken on site?

b, They're taken just in back of that -- that concrete
rubble structure that was in Photo 10 and in Photo 12.

O. Did you make any cbservations on the northwest side of
the Gomper site?

I, Yes. That was the area cof the -- of the -- where the
pit was I saw during the August inspections, August 2000
inspections. And I observed that the -- there was a large pile
of olly contaminated scil that contained many of the same waste
items that were in the -~- that were in the pit. It appeared that
the truck that I observed in August with the roll-off box with
s0il, the soil had been dumped on the ground here.

Q. Did you observe that roll-off box during your August

2000 inspecticn site?

A No, I didn't.

Q. Is there a picture that depicts your observations?

A. Yes, Photograph No. 6.

Q. Do you have an coplnion concerning your cbservations of

December 5th at the Gomper site?

A. Yes. It appears that used —-- that cil field waste was
deposited on the ground causing a -- again, a risk for ground
water contamination, soil contamination, storm water runoff and
surface water contamination. It appeared that the waste that was

in the roll-off box had been redispoesed of on the ground causing
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Q. Did the location of the discharged oil in that heavily
wooded area indicate to you any efforts on site to disgquise that?

A. Yes, that would tell me that discharging it in an ares
where it's difficult to see, they were trying to conceal the
dumping of oil field waste.

Q. Did the oiled soaked land pose a threat to the
environment?

A. Yes. Residual o0il contaminations poses a threat to
potential surface water and leaching into the ground water.

C. Did Mr. Prior ultimately respond to the Violation Notice
that the Illincis EPA mailed?

A, Yes, he did.

Q. Do you recall Mr. Prior's response to the Violation
Notice?
A. The response was made through his censultant. I believe

it was Hopper Environmental.

Q. Did Mr. Prior, through his consultant, commit to
complete any activities on site?

A. Yes, they said they would clean the soil up, take 1t to
the landfill, and they would take the used o©il to the -- to the
recycle -- a recycling facility. 2nd they said they would stop
dumping ©il field waste at that -- at that facility.

Q. Did they commit to a completion of these activities by a
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certain date?

AL I would have to review the documents to refresh ny
memory.

Q. Okay. TI'l1l hand you a deocument. If you can identify
this document for me.

A. It is the response to the -- to the Vieolation Notice

that the Agency sent to Prior 01l Company.

Q. Will that document assist you in refreshing your
recollection?

A. Yes, 1t would.

Q. Ckay. By what date did Hopper Environmental commit to

those measures that you just described?

A, They said that -- that they will have it done by January
19th, 2001, that for one part of it; and that was for the
contaminated soil from the pit. And they also committed to
having the containers of used o0il off site by January 12th, 2001.

o. Ckay. Thank you. Was a MNotice of Intent toc Pursue
Legal Action sent to Mr. Prior?

A. Yes, it was.

Q. Did you request that the Notice of Intent to Pursue
Legal Action be sent to Mr. Prior?

A, I recommended, with concurrence from my regional
attorney, that a Notlce of Intent to Pursue Legal Action be sent

to Mr. Prior.
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Q. I'm going to hand you what's been previously marked as
People's Exhibit Neo. 7 for identification. If you could identify
this document for me. It Is a Notice of Intent to Pursue Legal
Actlon. What kind of records does your Bureau regularly maintain
or generate to notify individuals that the State will be
proceeding with legal action against them?

A. This document is part of the Section 31 process that
let's the respondent know that the Agency may take legal action,
and it's sent via certified letter.

Q. Once the list is sent to the respondent, what does your

Bureau do with this document and how? Do you maintain it in your

filesg?
A, Yes, 1t's maintained in our file. &nd it gives the
respondent 30 days to -- I'm sorry, 20 days to set up a meeting.
Q. Are these Notice of Intent to Pursue Legal Action

letters regularly generated by the Illinois EPA?

A, Yes, they are.

Q. Do you typically receive a copy of these documents?
A, Yes.

o. Was this Notice of Intent to Pursue Legal Action

produced in the crdinary course of business activity.
A. Yes, it was.
MS. CARTER: At this time the People move for the admissicn

of People’s Exhibit 7,
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HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Do the Respondents have any
objection? Hearing none, I will admit People's 7.

Q. {By Ms. Carter) Did Mr. Prior respond toe the NIPLA, or
the Notlce of Intent to Pursue Legal Acticn?

A. Not in writing. He did call to set up the meeting.
However, I believe there was an illness in the family and it was
cancelled but not rescheduled.

Q. Did you return to the site on August 30th, 20017

M. Yes, I did.

Q. I'm geing to hand you what's previously been marked
Feople's Exhibit 8 for identification., If you could identify

this document for me.

A. It is an Open Dump Checklist for an August 30th, 2001,
inspection.
Q. Was this document generated in the procedures we

discussed with accepting your Rugust 2000 Inspection Report?

A. Yes. And the December 5th, 2000, inspection.

0. Okay. Did you take photographs while you were on site
on August 30th, 20017

A, Yes, I did.

Q. Are you generally familiar with the site as it appeared
cn that date?

A. Yes, 1 am.

Q. Did these photographs fairly and accurately show the
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conditicn of the site on August 30th?

A, Yes.

Q. Did you also complete a site sketch for this visit?

Al Yes.

Q. And does it generally show the conditions of the site on

August 30th?
A, Yas.
(O And will it assist you in explaining your observations
on this date?
A. Yes, 1t will.
MS. CARTER: At this time the Pecple move for the admission
of Pecple's Exhibit No. 8 into evidencs.
HEARING CFFICER SUDMAN: Do the Respondents have any

objection? Hearing ncne, I will admit People's Exhibit 8.

Q. (By Ms, Carter) What did you observe on site?
A. I observed that it remained relatively unchanged since
my December 5th inspection. I observed a pile of oily,

contaminated soil from the pit was still there, and it appeared
that since nons of the rubbkle or vegetation had been moved
around, it did not look like that any of the crude 0il material
had been cleaned up either.

Q. Qkay. I think you menticned that you observed the
material that you previously believe you observed in the pit?

A, Right, yes.

o2
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Q. In the January 2001 letter from Hopper Environmental to
the Illincis EPA responding to the Viclation Notice, did they
make any commitments concerning that pit?

A. Yes, they commit that they would have the waste from the
pit sent to the landfill and the oil field -- and the used oil
drums sent to a recycling facility by the end of January 2001.
&nd by the inspection, it appeared that they did not comply with

that compliance commitment agreement.

0. Did they also state that the material had bheen placed on
plastic?

A. Yes. And it was evident that there was no plastic under
the soil.

Q. Okay. If I could direct your attention to the
photographs -- specifically Photeograph No. 1, what does -- or
excuse me, Jjust a moment, sir. O©Okay. Photograph No. 1, what
does that depict?

A. That is the pile of contaminated scil from the pit that
is disposed of on the ground with no plastic underneath it.

Q. I see there's gquite a bit of vegetation cut there; is
that correct?

AL Yes.

Q. Did it make it difficult to observe things?

A, No, not really.

0. Ckay. What about the Photograph No. 37
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A. That is another view of the contaminated soil.

Q. Did you make any other observations on this date?
A, Yes, I did. 1t appeared that it was difficult to see
down into the areas where the -- where the, sorry, oil field

waste had been dumped and the concrete rubble and vegetation. I
did not observe any further o©il staining on the -- on the
branches. It locks like the rain water, through natural

attenuation, had washed this material off the plants.

Q. Did you observe any new pits on site?

A. Yes, there was a new pit on site. However, that pit was
empty. There was no -- there was no waste in it.

Q. Do you have an opinion concerning your cobservations on

this date?

A, Yes, I do. It locked like the letter that -- the letter
we recelived stating that they would clean it up, they did not
clean it up. It looks like the -~ little to nc effort at all was
done towards compliance of the Violaticn Notice.

Q. In your opinion, did the crude oll contaminated soil
still present a threat to the environment?

A. Yas, it did.

Q. Okay. Why so?

A, Tt is still exposed Lo the elements. You still have a
threat for ground water contamination, surface water

contamination and soil contamination.
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Q. Did the Tllinois EPA ultimately receive an Enwvironmental
Site Assessment Report from Hopper Envirconmental for the
respondent?

A, Yes, yes.

Q. And as a result of that report, did you subseguently

return to the site?

A. Yes, T did.

Q. And it was in May of this year?

A. No, I think it was May of last year.

Q. I'11 hand you what's been previously marked as People's
Exhibit 9.

A. Yes, 1t was this year.

Q. Did you respond to that question, I'm sorry?

A. Yes, 1t was this vyear.

Q. 1'm handing you what has been marked for identification

People’'s Exhibit 9, what is this document?

A. It is an Open Dump Checklist with narrative, site sketch
and photeographs,

0. Did -- Was this document generated under the sane
procedures we discussed earlier in your testimony?

A, Yes, it was.

Q. Okay. And was it generated in the ordinary course of
business activity?

A. Yes, it was.
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o. and did you take photographs out there on May?

B. Yes, I did.

Q. And are you generally familiar with the site as it
appeared on May 8th, 200372

A. Yes.

Q. &nd do these photographs fairly and accurately show the

site on this date?

A. Yes,

Q. Did you also take -- draw a site sketch?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. Did this site sketch generally show the condition of the

site on this date?
A Yes.
MS. CARTER: At this time the People move for the admission
of People's No. % into evidence.
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Do the Respondents have any

objection? Hearing none, I will admit People's HNo. 9.

Q. (By Ms. Carter) What was the purpcse of this site
visit?
A, To assess the compliance with the acting regulations and

to determine if, and to verify, if the site had been cleaned up
pursuant to the plan that was submitted by Hopper Environmental.
Q. The plan that was submitted by Hopper Environmental, do

you recall when that was submitted to the Illinols EPA?
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A, it was March 12th, 2003,

2. Wwhat did that plan generally state took place on site?

h. It stated that the -- the ©0il had been remediated and
the soll had been cleaned up. And it alsc indicated that the
used oll drums were sent to a recycling facility, and the waste
in the pit had bkeen sent toc the landfiil.

Q. Did they submit receipts for the disposal of the general

trash, refuse and tires?

A. No, there was no receipts for the disposal of general
trash --

Q. Okay.

B -~ and/or tires,

Q. What does that tell you or nct tell you?

A, well, I suspect that the trash went into the 15-yard

rell-off box that went to Cottonwood Landfill in Marissa,
Illineis, but the liandfills are banned from accepting tires, so I
still gquesticon where the tires went to, where they're disposed of
at.

oR And the report from Heopper Environmental, it included

sample results; correct?

n. Yes, it did.
Q. What do they generally show?
A. They showed that, through field screenings, that the

area met the Tiered Approach to Clean-up Obijectives that are in
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the BReoard regulations.
Q. The Tiered Approach to Clean-up Objectives, is that

generally referred to as TACO?

A, Yes.

0. What deoes TACO seek to do or allow?

A, Well, TACC is our clean-up standards that are based on
risk based clean-up standards. And essentially what -- what a

facility does is, if they have a release, we tell them to clean
up the release and clean it up and meet the levels that are in
TACO. Again, another list of chemical constituents, another list
of concentrations of those chemicals. And if you clean it up and
then you sample what's left, and if those numbers are below
what's in the list -- on the list, then you're done. You don't
have to clean up any further. And it appeared that Shamo
Environmental had met those objectives.
Q. What did you generally observe on site in May of 20037
A, I did not observe any open dumping of waste on site. It
-~ The waste scil that was in the pit, was no longer on site, T
did not observe any oll, stained scil, around the broken concrete
or on the rear of the property. The one open pit did not contain
any waste, and I did not see any drums of used cll on site,
MS. CARTER: I have no further guestions for this witness.
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Ckay. Thank you. T will remind

the Respondents, this is your opportunity to cross-examine this
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witness. You will have an opportunity to testify and present all
of your evidence later. This is not the time to do that. This
is simply your time to question the witness about anything he's
just said in his direct testimony. Having said that, Mr. Prior,
you may continue 1f you have any questions for this witness.

MR. PRIOR: ©No, ma'am.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Ckay. Mr. Mezo, do you have any
guestions for this witness?

MR, MEZO: No.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Okay. If there are no other
guestions for this witness, you may step down. Let's go off the
record for a minute?

(A discussicon was held off the record.)

HEARING OFFICER SUDMABN: Ckay. We're back on the record.
We just decided to take a one-hour lunch break and meet back here
at 12:40., Thank vyou.

(A lunch break was taken.}

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Okay. We are back from lunch. It
is 12:45., We are ready to proceed with the Pecple's next
witness.

M3. CARTER: The People call Cheryl Cahnovsky.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: The court reporter will swear you
in.

CHERYL CAHNOVSKY,
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called as a witness herein, having been first duly sworn,
deposeth and saith as follows:

QUESTIONS BY MS. CARTER:

Q. Please state your name.
AL Cheryl Lynn Cahnovsky.
Q. Just to make sure the record is clear and to make sure

there's no mistake on wmy part, what was your name a few weeks

ago”?

A. Last name was Kelly. I got married.

Q. I am still probably going to call ycu Cheryl Keily. Can
you tell me a little bit -- a little bit about your post-~high

school education?

. I have an undergraduate degree from Southern Illinois
University in Edwardsville in earth science with a focus in
geology, and I have a master's of science degree from Southern

Iillinois University at Edwardsville in environmental studies.

Q. And with whom are you currently employed?

A. Il1linois EPA.

Q. And what's your position with the Illinois EPA?

A, I'm an emergency responder.

Q. For what unit?

A. The Emergency Operations Unit, Cffice of Chemical
Safety.

Q. Ckay. Can you tell me about your duties as an emergency
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responder?

AL Yes., I respond to hazardous material, chemical
incidents, whether itfs air, land or water related; I conduct
site visits, do follow-up inspections and review remediation
plans and reports and review the sample results until completion
of the project.

Q. When you respond to environmental releases, do you also
coordinate responses amongst various groups?

A. Yes, I coordinate with local, state and county
officials, fire departments. And if it's an emergency response,
usually the HAZMAT team is on site.

Q. How long have you keen working in this capacity?

A, I've worked with Emergency Response Unit for seven
years, and I did have a previous position with Illinois EPA.

Q. And what was that position?

A. I worked as an Environmental Protection Specialist for
the Bureau of Air and Alr Quality Planning Section. I did review
transportation conformity measures for non-attainment areas such
as ozene, for the metreopelitan areas cof St. Louis and Chicago.

Q. During the course of your employment with the Illinois
EPA Office of Emergency Response, can you estimate how many
inspections you've done in that time?

A, Total?

Q. Total, or so many per year. What's easier for you?
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A, Inspections, probably at least 100 related to oill, 50 to
100 per year related to oil spills.

Q. Okay. Since you've been employed by the Illinois EPA,
have you had the opportunity to have some training as well?

A. Yes. I've gone to guite a few spill drills and been
inveolved with salt water training as well as the spill drills
deal with oil pellutieon act which is under crude o0il or petroleum
products and impact water waste.

Q. When you say spill drills, what sort of activities do
yvou undertake in those sort of events?

A, The spill drills are normally sponsored by an
organization. It's reguired to do these periodically. And we
act as the emergency responder or oversite manager for the EPA on
site. They ~- What they do is go through either a table-top
exercise or a hands-on exercise. If it was an hands-on exercise,
they would deploy river boom and absorbant boom to the river,
have their emergency response contractors on site and try to go
through the motions of the spill as best they can. By
remediating and addressing how big of the spill was and deploying

boom at strategic lcocations downstream.

o. You use the term river boom or absorbant boom, is that
interchangeable?
Fi No. River boom is classic skirted boom. It floats on

water and they come in different lengths. But typically what
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they're designed to do is deploy a sheet of plastic about this —-
at least 12 inches in depth in the water to slow down cr help
recover the crude oil or petroleum products that are on top of
the water. So they place these in the water on an angle,
straight across on an angle, and the corner of it will collect
the o0il and bring it to the bank. And then they have recovery
trucks that recover the petroleum.

. and what about an absorbant boom?

A, An absorbant boom, it absorbs the petroleum products.

It floats on water too. They are normally white, and they're
made of an -- I would say a petroleum fiber or a plastic fiber
fhat absorps the petroleum. And they are used 1n conjunction
with river boom a lot of times in larger waterways. Absorbant
boom can be used in smaller waterways. A river boom, unless the
creek is at least 12 inches in depth, that isn't used.

Q. Have you alsc had the opportunity to participate in
training sponsored by Department of Transportation, are those the
same things the spill drills you were discussing then?

AL Yes.

Q. I'm going to hand you what has previously beaen marked as
People's Exhibit No. 10 for identification. If you ceculd
identify this document for me.

B, This is my resume.

G. &nd dees it fairly and accurately show your work
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experience and educatiocnal background?
A, Yes.
Q. And does 1t -- or is it current through teday's date to
the present?
A, Yes,
MS. CARTER: At this time the People move for the admission
of People's Exhibit 10.
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Are there any objections to this?
Hearing none, I will admit People's Exhibit 10.
Q. (By Ms. Carter] Are you generally familiar with the

Attorney General's case inveolving John Prior and James Mezo?

A. Yes.

Q. How are vou familiar with it?

A, I have conducted several site visits to different crude
oil spills.

0. Are you familiar with the facility consisting of several

tank batteries used to store crude oil located in the Wamac City
Park in Wamacg, Illinois?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. How are you familiar with what I'll refer to as
the Wamac Park site?

A, I was notified by IEMA of a crude oil spill, 20 barrel
crude oil spill, and have conducted several site visits there.

Q. When you say IEMA, what does that stand for?
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A. Tllineig Emergency Management Agency.

Q. What is the purpose of IEMA?

A, IEMA is the agency that has the reportable quantities as
required to report through the state, and we receive thelr IEMA
reports, when it's applicable to IEPA.

C. Ckay. Are you familiar with whe operates the tank
batteries located in the Wamac City Park?

A. John Prior.

Q. Okay. And approximately how many occasions have you
been to the site?

A, T helieve three.

o, Okay. Bnd dees it include a July "97 site visit?

AL Yes.

Q. I'm goling to hand you what has previously been marked as
People's Exhibit 11 for identification. If vyou can identify this
document for me.

A. This is my Inspection Memo.

Q. Okay. Are these Inspection Memos something that vou
typically generate in response to an inspection?

AL Yes.

Q. Ckay. What use dces the Office of Emergency Response
make cof these documents once its generated? Are they kept in a
file?

A, Yes, they're kept in a file and maintained.
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Q. Are these Inspection Memos generally completed shortly
after your inspection?

AL Yes.

Q. And this August 7th, 1997, Inspection Memo, was 1t made
by you under these procedures we Just described?

A, Yes.

Q. And was it made at or near the time the events contained
within these deocuments were cobserved?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Is this document ordinarily produced in the

course of business by the Tllinocis EPA?

B, Yes.

Q. Did you take photographs while you were out there?

A. I did.

0. Okay. If I can have you turn to the photographs, are

you generally familiar with the site as it appeared on July 22nd,

199772
A, Yes.
Q. Do these photographs fairly and accurately show the

condition cf the site on this date?

A, YTes.

0. Did you also include a map of this facility with your
Inspection Memo?

AL I did.
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Q. And why did you include the map?

b. I put down the location of the photographs that I tcook.
Q. Are the photographs marked by numbers?
A Yes, they're marked by numbers. And then I have the

roll number associated with the roll of film that I took,
0. And then are those photograph numbers cross-referenced
on the map that you attached?
A. fes.
Q. Will this map -- will these maps assist you in
explaining your observaticns on July 22Znd?
b. Yes.
MS. CRRTER: Okay. At this time the People move for the
admission of People's Exhibit 11 into evidence.
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Do the Respondents have any
objection? Hearing none, I will admit People's Exhibit 11.
Q. (By Ms. Carter} Why were you on site on July 22nd? Was
it in response to an IEMA report?
A. Yes, 1t was. And we had received a call from Alan

Whitler who is the Mines and Mineral manager in Centralia.

Q. When did you receive the call from Alan Whitler?

A. On the 22nd that morning, and I had spoken to Woody
Myers.

Q. And who is Woody Myers?

A. He's the Mines and Mineral inspector that was at the
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site on the Zlst.

Q. Did Mr. Myers relay any information to you in that phone
call?

L. He did. He told me that he had responded teo the
incident that evening. That crude oil was not contained or fully

contained within the fire walls of the contaimnment berm and had
overflowed the containment berm. The crude oil had drained down
20 to 30 feet into the Wamacg City Park into a small drainageway
that impacted Fulton Creek, and -- and they had deployed straw
bales at twe bridge locations in Fulton Creek in the Wamac -- in
the city of Wamac. A thunderstorm had occurred that evening on

the 21st, and it had spread cut the ©il even farther. &nd 1

think that's -- he discussed how much he theought was released in
the spill.

Q. Okay. He said there was straw bales deployed?

A. Yes.

. What purpese would straw bales serve?

A. Well, if you don't have absocorbant boom, straw bales are

used to help contain the crude oil if there isn't much flow in a
-- in a drainageway. But absorbant booms absorb oil and straw
bales do not absorb the oil, they only help contain it. And the
straw bale -- the straw itself 1s coated on the outside with the
oil, but it was flowing through the kales.

Q. If the water body has a great deal of flow, are straw
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bales effective?

A. No.

Q. I think vou also mentioned that the c¢rude oil -- had
been reported that the crude o0il drained on through the Wamac

City Park, is this facility in close proximity to the Wamac City

Park?
A, Yes, it's actually literally in the Wamac City Park.
0. Is there a photograph that actually physically depicts

the locaticn of the tank battery relative to the park?

A There 1is.

Q. Is it —-- If I could direct your attention maybe to speed
this ap -—-

A. To number 10,

0. On what date?

A. July 28th.

Q. and what does that show then?

B It shows a picture of the tank battery adjacent to the
park.

0. Is that a baseball field there?

A. Yes, it's a baseball field next to the tank battery.

0. Let's turn to your inspection now, Mrs. Cahnovsky, when
you first arrived on site. Did you make any observations in

termsg of odors?

A, Yes, the cdors were strong at the release point.
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Q. and what did it smell of?

L. Crude oil.
Q. And did you find Mr. Prior on site?
A. T did find Mr. Prior on site. He was working on

constructing the tank walls within the containment battery.

Q. Within the containment battery, is that what you said?
A, He was bulilding them up with soil.
Q. Okay. What about any cother employees, did you observe

any other employses on site?

A, No, I didn't.

. Okay. Did you observe any sort of recovery egquipment
such as a vacuum truck on site?

. Yes, there was a vacuum fruck ¢n site next to the tank
battery, but 1t was not operating.

Q. Okay. And maybe just to clarify, what purpose does =z
vacuum truck serve?

A. A vacuum truck 1s used -- 1it's basically a truck with a
tank on the back with a pump. And what they do is they suck the
liquids, usually they're used in petroleum product spills to
recover the crude 01l from a cresk.

Q. Okay. And in a release such as this, would you have
expected to see a vacuum truck in use?

Al Yes.

Q. Okay. Did you then or did you have a conversation with
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Mr. Prior while you were on site?

Figs I did have a conversation with Mr, Prior.
Q. Did you discuss with him the cause of the incident?
A, initially the IEMA report had stated this was from a -~

he reported from IEMA that this was due to a lightening strike.
But his reports, what he had tcld me, that this was due to
children had opened the ball valve through the fence. There's a
fence outside the tank battery, and the children must have opened
a ball valve and released the crude oil.

Q. Ckay. You said a number of things there. I'm going to
back up just a moment.

B, Okavy.

0. When you were out there, did you notice any sort of
potential damage due to a lightening strike?

A, No, I didn't.

Q. Okay. And then you also mentioned that children were
responsible for the incident. When you arrived on site on July
Z2nd, was there access, control access, to this facility?

A, No, there wasn't because the gate was not locked.

C. Okay. While on site, did you try to estimate the amount
of 0il that was released from the tank battery?

A. I did try to estimate that. I had asked Mr. Prior from
what tank this was released, and he said the gun barrel.

0. And what is a gun barrel generally?
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A, L gun barrel is a tank where the crude oil comes in from
a flow line, and it separates the salt water from the crude oil
in two separate tanks. So since oil floats on water, since this
was releasing from the bottom, there would have been salt water
on the bottom of the containment berm along with crude oil.

0. Okay. And so getting back te estimate, Mr. Pricr tocld
you how much capacity the gun barrel had; is that right?

A. Yes. He said it was 210 barrels, and he said it
contained a stock of 59 barrels and 28 barrels remained in the
tank, so that left 31 barrels to be released to Fulton Creek.

0. Ckay. Let's turn to your ¢bservations while you were on
site. Beginning in the zrea of the containment site, can you
tell me generally what sort of purpocse a containment dike is?

AL A containment dike, or what the Mines and Minerals or

the o0ll producers call, that a fire wall.

Q. Ckay.
A. What it does, it ceontains -- 1it's supposed to contain
one and~a~half times the largest tank capacity. So in case there

is a release from the tank, it's contained within the tank
battery.

Q. And turning to the containment dike on site, did you
observe any crude oll within that structure?

A, There was crude 0il within the containment berm.

. If I could direct your attention to Photograph No. 3
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from July 22nd, are you there Ms. Cahnovsky?

R, Yes.

Q. What does that photograph show?

A. It shows the ball valve that was opened, and it alseo
shows crude cil in the ceontainment berm.

Q. Now which structure is the ball valve that you're
referring to?

A. The yellow handle i1s the valve.

Q. Okay. 1If I could direct your attention to Photograph
No. 7, what does that show, from the same date it?

A. Shows crude o0il within the containment berm.

Q. And Photograph No. 87

A, It also shows crude cil in the containment berm.

Q. I think you mentioned that the report was that the crude
0il drained to Fulton Creek; is that correct?

A. I don't know 1f IEMA report stated it drained to Fulton
Creek, but it did say there was a release.

Q. Did you observe -- Can you tell me about the drainage
that you observed on site?

A. Yes. There's a couple photographs that -- number 9 and
10 show a site picture right outside the tank battery. You c¢an
see In Photograph No. 9 that the grass 1s stained with oil, and
on numpber 10 the grass is alsc again stained with o0il with new

rock outside the containment berm.
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Q. Turning to Photegraph No. 11 and 12, where are those
taken?

A. These are taken in town in Wamac. This one number 12 1is
by the bridge, and number 11 is also in town. That one was taken
in Fulton Creek.

Q. Lpproximately how far downstream would you estimate that
these are from the release points?

A, For sure within a quarter mile. These are in town.

Q. And in terms of these photographs, can you tell me a bit
what they depict?

A. Yes, there's crude o0il in Photograph No. 11 and 12. You
can see heavy crude oil in number 12 and you can see the crude
0il residue on top of the water on 11 and 12. That's why the
water is discolored tc a brownish yellow.

C. And turning to Photograph No. 13 of July 22nd, what does

that depict?

A, That's crude oll with some straw that he put into the
waterway.

Q. Is this further downstream from Photographs No. 11 and
127

B, Yes.

. Let me just back up for a minute. Did you see any

containment operation taking place at the release point?

A. What do you mean by containment? The tank battery or in
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the water?

Q. In the water.
A. In the water there was none at the release point. There
was, like I said earlier, two locations that —-- where straw bales

were deployed at intersections, at bridge intersections, in

Fulton Creek.

Q. and again, that was further downstream?
A, Yes.
. Okay. Weuld you expect to see containment operations at

the release point in the water when it first entered the water?

A, Yes. There was -— A containment should have been done
at the containment spot, but the focus was to contain it moxe
downstream because there had been rainfall the night before that
had migrated it down further.

Q. I think befcre we had an extensive conversation of a
straw dam and whether or not they are effective in a high fleowing
body of water, would you typlcally or expect to see any sort of
support of the straw dams and make them more effective?

A, I told Mr. Prior that they weren't working very well,
that they weren't effective. He suggested that because of the
bulk of the crude oil was migrating around the straw bales along
the bridges, and he suggested using chicken wire, so I told him
To use chicken wire.

Q. Have you ever seen that done before?
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A. Honestly straw bales aren't used very often. Most
people use absorbant bcom and river absorbant and siphon dams as
well.

Q. When you say siphon dams, what deo you mean by that?

A. Well, siphon dams are put in waterways that have some
water movement. And what they do is they are constructed of soil
and they put a PCV pipe at least 2 to 3 feet long and they put it
on an angle so the water below it will migrate through on the
other side of the damn, and the oil will be collected on one side

so they can recover the cil on top of the water.

0. Ckay. Did yecu see such a dam in this siphon in this
instance?

A. I -- I did not see a siphon dam belng used.

Q. And would you have expected to see a siphon dam such at

a reiease like this?

A, Yes. It could have been more difficult in Fulton Creek,
but it could have been used in town at the drainageway.

Q. While you were on site, did you see any recovery
operations taking place?

A. No. I told Mr. Prior to use the recovery truck when 1
was there.

Q. Did you have any other conversations with Mr. Prior in
terms of what was expected of him for containment and/or

recovery?
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A. Well, I told him that he needed to use -- that I had
some absorbant booms with me. And if he would pay the cost of
replacing them to the IEPA, that I would give them to him because
he said he did not have them.

Q. Do you know if the Illinois EPA was ever reimbursed
their cost for the absorbant bcom?

A. To my knowledge they haven't.

Q. And I apologize if I asked this before, were there

workers on site anywhere?

. Initially I did not see any workers.
Q. Okay. After that, did workers arrive on site?
A. Later in the day I did see a couple of workers in the

creek because I recommended that he have workers working with
hand tocls deploying the booms, which he did not do the work
himself. He had his staff do it. Deploy the absorbant booms
that I gave him and work on the chicken wire with the straw
bales, and I told him later to use a recovery truck.

Q. Based -- based on your experience, how many workers do
you think should have been on site? Was this a sufficient amount

or should there have been more?

4. This was more of a medium size release.
Q. Okay.
A. S50 at least for a gpill this size, T would say two

recovery trucks would have been good and encugh staff, at least
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two to four workers, in the creek with hand tools. A leaf blower
is used a lot of times to push the o0il on top of the water to the

recovery point on downstream, and they use shovels to smash the

water off the bank instead of using a pressure -- a water
pressure device to spray wash the —-- the creek. Sc that's what
was used.

0. Is that what you would have expected to be used?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. Rut did you see it in this instance?

A. I saw the hand tcools being used later in the day.

Q. Okay.

A. But I did not see a pressure washer, a leaf blower or

recovery truck initially being used.

Q. Tf I could direct your attention to Photograph 0 and 1
dated July Z2nd, 1997, where are those taken?

A. Those are taken downstream. And the other photographs,
they're still in town. There is straw there, and you can see the
bridge post con number 1. Those were at the bridge intersections.
You can see crude oil because the river -- or the creek had come
up because of the rainfall, and the crude oil is on the
vegetation on both photographs.

Q. While you were on site, Mrs. Cahnovsky, were you
informed of children playing in Fulton Creek near Wabash Avernue?

A. I was. B resident had told me that information.
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0. Okay. Did you then go to this location and make any

observations?
A. I did. 1 saw the children playing on Wabash Avenue
underneath the -- in -- in Fulton Creek under the bridge.
0. Was there an oil residue in the creek at that location?
AL Yes.
Q. Okay. If I ccould direct your attention to Photographs

No. 4 and 5 of July 22Znd, 1997, what do those show?

A. They show the children in the creek.

0. Okay. What did you tell the children to do?

A, I told the chilldren to go home and clean up.

Q. After you observed children in the creek, did you go and

discuss your observations with Mr. Prior?
A. I talked to Mr. Prior and told him that there were nine

children in Fulton Creek.

Q. And what was Mr. Prior's response?
A, He told me cnly nine children.
0. After observing the children in the o0il and discussing

the matter with Mr. Prior, did you then leave the site?
A, I did. I followed Fulton Creek outside of town. 1T

think 1t was to Persimmon, Persimmon Road.

2. And what did you observe along the way?
A. There was crude ¢il along Fulton Creek. My Photographs
No. 6 and 7, show outside of town about a half mile. It was
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crude o0il in -- in the wooded debris, and along -- there's -- in
number 6 you can see there's crude oil collected up pehind the
log that's laying in the creek.

Q. Approximately how many miles were you downstream from
the release point at that time?

A. About a half mile.

Q. And how far did you notice that the oil traveled down
stream in Fulton Creek and Sewer Creek?

A. I went down and noticed pockets of oil and scum to about

two to three miles.

Q. Downstream to The release point?
AL Yes.
Q. Do you have an environmental copinion concerning your

cbhservations of July 22nd?

Al Yes. There was ilmpact to the surface water, the soil,
alr quality, and to the fish, aguatic life, vegetation and biota
in the stream.

Q. Do you have any concerns about the remediation efforts
that you observed on July 2Znd?

A, Well, they weren't adeguate. He seemed to be responding
to what I asked him to do eventually, but it wasn't very —-- he
wasn't proactive, and he was moving after several repeated
discussions of what needed to be done.

Q. Did you return to the site on July 28th, '9872
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A. T did.

<. Okay. Why did you go back on site?

A. On July 28th there was a call to thae office from
Collinsville, a complaint, a woman from Wamac, and she said there
was crude olil draining by her home in Fulton Creek.

Q. What did you observe on site cn the 28th?

A. Well, I initially went back to the tank battery and
noticed that the crude oil had been recovered pretty well from
the tank battery, but there was still soil, cily soil, ocutside

the tank battery; and the creek was still impacted in Fulton

Creek.

Q. What does an oily soil outside a tank battery indicate
to you?

A, Well, he hadn't worked on in the vegetation. He hadn't

worked on addressing that. But I had told him the day before
that the focus should be in the creesk.

Q. When you arrived on July 28th, did you have any problems
gaining access to the tank battery?

A. No, 1 didn't. The tank battery is unlocked.

Q. Did you continue to have environmental concerns based on
your July 28th site visit?

. ¥o. Well, actually I did have envircnmental concerns.
I told him again to contain the oil. T went looking for

Mr. Prior because he wasn't recovering --
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Q. Uh~huh.

A. ~- in Fulton Creek, and I found him at the Prior
Oestreich Number tank battery which is another release we're
going to discuss today. He was there with several other crew
members, and I told him that I was concerned about the crude oil
in the creek.

0. Ckay. Did Mr. Prior now state another reason for the
cause of this incident?

L. Yes, he did. He stated that ancother competitor had
sabotaged his two tank batteries; the one that we were at there
at the location, and alsce the c¢ne at the park.

Q. Did you subsequently conduct a site vigit on September
11th, 199772

A. Yes.

Q. I'm going tec hand you what has previously been marked
People's Exhibit No. 12 for identificaticon. TI'l1l ask you to

identify this document for me.

A. That's an Inspecticn Memo of mine.

Q. From your September 1lth site visif?

A, Yes,

Q. Did you generate this document according to the same

procedures that we discussed when we were talking about your July

site visit?

A. Yes.
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Q. Was this Inspection Memo generated in the crdinary
course of business activity?

A, Yes.

Q. And did vyou take photographs while you were on site on
September 11th, '877

A, I did.

0. And are you generally familiar with the site as it
appeared on that date?

A. Yes.

Q. And do these photeographs fairly and accurately show the

site on that date?

A, Yes.

Q. And again, did you attach a map?

A. I don't think I did. ©Oh, vyes, T did.

Q. Okay. And what deces this map seek to do?
4, The map shows the photo locations in town.

MS. CARTER: At this time the Pecople move for the admission
of People's 12 into evidence. Did I hand you ocne?
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: No.
M3. CARTER: Okay.
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Do the Respondents have any
objectlon? Hearing none, I will admit People's Exhibit 12.
Q. (By Ms. Carter) When you first arrived on the 11th, was

the gate locked?
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A, Neo.  And my photograph on number 1 shows that the gate
was open.

Q. What did you ochserve?

A, I observed several inches of crude oil in the
containment berm. If you look at the pictures, you can tell that
there's a reflection, and that shows that's crude oil and not
water. Number 2, it shows that I put a stick in the crude oil in
the containment berm. It shows about the depth of the water of
the crude oil.

0. In your opinicn, did this crude c©il continue to present
a threat to the environment?

A. It did, because it had been raining. I was concerned
about it overbanking the containment berm into the creek again.
And by not recovering the crude oil, it could impact the ground
water.

Q. Is there any other source that could have contributed to
your observations of July '97 in the unnamed drainage way in
Fulten Creek and Sewer Creek?

A. No, I did not see any upgraded impact inte the creek,
and he was the only person that had reported a release to the
EPA.

Q. Mrs. Cahnovsky, what kind of records does ERU regularly
generate and maintain concerning Notices of Viclation to a

responsible party?
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A, Violation Notice.

Q. Okay. I'm going to hand you what has previously been
marked as People's Exhibit No. 13 and Pecople's Exhibit Neo. 14 for
identificartion. If you could identify these two documents for me
and tell me which document you're referring to for
identification?

A, Well, these are both Violation Netices. One was sent
registered mail, and the other cne was hand delivered. They were
seven months apart. And I believe the reason why the second one
was sent out to Mr. Prior was —-- 1s that he did not accept the
first one.

Q. So the first one is the one that says certified mail,
People's Exhibit 137

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. And then the People's Exhibit 14, sent -- 1t was
sent via hand delivery?

A. Right.

Q0. Ckay. Do you typically make scme sort of recommendation
for a Viclation Notice?

. I do give a suggestion to management.

Q. And based on that suggestion, management will make a
decision on whether or not a VN is being sent?

A. Yes.

Q. Are these Vicolation Notices regularly generated by the
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Illinois EPA?

A, Yes.

0. And did you recelve coples of these VNs that were either
hand delivered or mailed to Mr. Prior?

P T did.

. And once the Violation Notice letter has been sent, do

you typlcally participate in any subsequent VN meetings with the

violator?
A, I'm usually there.
Q. And this Viclation Notice letter, was it generated in

the ordinary course of regularly conducted business activity?
A, Yes.
MS. CARTER: At this time People ask for the admission of
Pecple's 13 and People's 14.
HERRING OFFICER SUDMAN: Does the Respondent have any
objection? Hearing none, T will admit People's 13 and 14.
Q. {By Ms. Carter) Did the Illincls EPA receive a response
from Prior to either Violation Notice?
A I believe we received a response after a Viclation
Notice meeting that was held in Springfield, I believe that was

gsent in '96.

C. Okay. Mr. Prior's response was sent in "9%?
A. Yes.
Q. And did Mr. Prior commit to performing any measures in
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his response?

A Yes, his response was short. It just basically stated
that he would take soil samples, and it would be, I guess, used
in the work plan and scil sampling plan would be taken from the
Mezo~Prior site.

0. Ckay. Are you familiar with the -- whether a Wotice of
Intent to Pursue Legal Action letter was sent to Mr. Prior for
the violaticn?

A. I believe a letter was sent to him.

Q. Okay. Did you participate in any NIPLA meetings with

Mr. Prior?

A. I did not. Tom Powell did.
Q. Ckay. Did the Illinois EPA ultimately receive soil
sample -- soil, excuse me, and sediment results from Pricr for

this incident?

A. Yes.

Q. And do you recall apprcximately when the Illinois EPA
received them?

a. I think it was 2000.

Q. Is there something that would assist you in your

recollection?

A. Yes.
Q. What 1s that?
A, The Site Investigation Plan. Yes, this is the Surface

97

Keefe Reporting Company



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

Investigation Plan that was dated October 10th, 2000, and it was
prepared by Hopper Envircnmental.

Q. Ckay. Thank you. Based on this report, Mrs. Cahnovsky,
did the Illincis EPA ultimately determine that no further action

was required on site?

Al Yes.
Q. Ckay. Switch gears on vyou, okay. Are you generally
familiar with the -- a facility consisting of several

above-ground tank batteries used to store ¢il, and it includes

the Mezo-Oestreich site, and it's located at 224 Wabash in Wamac,

Illingis?

A, Yes.

Q. and how are you generally familiar with the site?

A. We received an IEMA report for that one as well, and T
conducted a site visit., I believe it was on July lst of '97.

Q. Are you generally —-- I apologize.

Al Oof 1997,

Q. Are you generally familiar who operated this site in
19977

o, Yes, John Prior operated the site,

Q. Okay. Do you recall on approximately how many occasions

you've been out there?
A. Three.

Q. Ckay. I'm geing to hand vou what's previously heen
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marked as People's Exhibit Wo. 15 for identification, and ask you

to identify this document for me.

AL

0.

This is Tom Powell's Inspection Memo.

Okay. 1 may have handed you the wrong document. Let me

check and see. Were you on site on July lst, '9772

A

I was.

Okay. And you said it was Tom Powell's Inspection Memo?
Yes.

Who is Tom Powell?

He is another emergency responder out of the

Collinsville Field Office,.

A,

Q.
People's
document

.

Q.

And did Mr. Powell accompany you then?

On July lst he did.

After that site wisit, did you return to the site?
Yes, I did.

And does that include the July 22nd --

Yes.

-— site visit?

Yes.

I'm going to band you what has previcusly been marked
16 for identification. If you can identify this
for me.

This is my Inspectiocn Memo.

And did you generate this Inspection Memo in accordance
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with the procedures that we discussed earlier?
A, Yes.

o. Ckay. And did you take photographs on this date?

B. T did neot -- T did on the ZZnd. I didn't T believe --
Yes, 1 did.

Q. Did you on the 22nd?

B. Uh-huh. &And I did also on the 28th.

Q. Does this Inspection Memo document both your inspections

on the 22nd and 28th?

AL Yes,

Q. And you said you teok photographs out there on the 22nd,
are you generally familiar with the site as it appeared on July
22nd, '977

A. Yes.

Q. End do these photographs fairly and accurately show the
condition of the site on the 22nd?

AL Yes.

Q. And are you generally familiar with the conditions of
the site on July 28th, '977

Al Tes.

. And do these photographs fairly and accurately show the
condition c¢f the site on that date?

AL Yes.

MS. CARTER: And at this time the People move for the
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admission of Pecple's 16 into evidence.
HEARING CFFICER SUDMAN: Do the Respondents have any
objection? Hearing none, I will admit People's 1lé6.

Q. (By Ms. Carter) What did you observe on the 22Znd?

. There was crude oil and guite a bit of water, it may
have been salt water, in the containment battery. There was
actually about a foot of it, and there was meore liquid in crude
©il in there during my site wvisit on July lst.

Q. Okay. If I could direct your attention to Photograph
No. 1 and Photograph No. 2. Turning first to Photograph Ho. 1,
what does that show?

A. Tt shows within the containment berm the tank battery,
and it shows crude oil and salt water and perhaps some fresh
water in there.

Q. What about Photograph No. 27

A. Tt shows the tank battery as well, and it shows that
there was some s0il berm built-up on the right side of the
picture.

Q. You said there was soll berm built-up on the right side
of the picture?

A, Yeah. 301l was added to the berm to make it higher to
contain the crude oil and salt water.

Q. Had that happened since your July visit, July lst, '97,

visit?
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A, Yes,

Q. Qkay. If T could scratch that. While you were on site,
did you notice whether the se¢il outside of the berm was still
oily?

A, Yeah, the scil outside of the berm was quite oily right

ourside of the berm, and along into the woods and intc the

drainageway.
Q. What did that indicate to you?
A Well, he had not tilled it up or applied lime or

anything at that time.

Q. In your cpinicn, did the conditions of the site on July
22nd continue to pose a threat to the environment?

A, Yes, they did. I would say that there was still a
surface water impact due tc the oily seoil, potential impact also
from the containment berm considering there was a foot of liguid
inside a containment bkerm, although it was built-up. My concern
also within the contalnment berm was potential impact to the
ground water, 1f it migrated, 1if it stayed in the containment
berm, and I -- there was offensive -- and off-site there was
offensive conditions in the creek.

. Ckay. What do you mean by that?

L. There was visible crude c¢il within the creek that was
not supposed to have been there.

Qo. Did you observe any remediation avenue taking place on
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the 2Znd of July?

A No.

Q. Did you -~ You mentioned before you conducted an
ingpection on July 28th?

a. Yes. I stopped by this tank battery to discuss the park
incident, and I found Mr. Pricr here, because I was lcoking for
him. And we discussed, like I had said earlier, there was
another reason why the spill occurred and that was due to
competitor sabotage at his tank batteries.

Q. Okay.

A. I also told him that I observed that the tank battery
valve was leaking liquids into the containment berm in that
Photograph Ne. 20 —-- on number 12 shows that.

Q. Oh, from the July 28th date?

A. Yes,
Q. Did you discuss with him it was leaking?
A. I did discuss that it was leaking with him, and he tried

to tighten up the valve, and it still continued to leak.

Q. Did Mr. Prior make any comment about the valve that was
leaking ©il?

A. Yes, he said that -- Tnitially I had thought this was a
-- not a4 Mines and Mineral approved valve, but he said it was,
but he would replace 1t.

Q. What deoes Photograph No. 1 depilct of July 28th?
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A,

o.

A.

Of July 22nd?

Ch, mine says July Z28th.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: There 1s two number 1s.

Ckay.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: The first one is July 22nd,

the next page is July Z8th.

A. Yeah, within the containment berm there is a pit with
crude oil in -- in it.

Q. (RBy Ms. Carter}) & pit with crude cil in it?

&, Yaah, you can see a little crude oil in this pit in the

containment berm.

potentially if this wasn't recovered out,

Q.

h.

Okay.

Yes,

Did this pose a threat to the environment?

it did. It posed a threat to ground water.

containment berm.

0. Was there any other source that could have contributed
to your observations in July '97 at the Mezc~Oestreich No. 1
site?

A. I did not see any of -- location upstream or downstream

in the creek that would have posed ancther threat.

No.

Q.
17z
A.

Q.

Are you generally familiar with the Morgan Kalber Kamp

Let me correct myself.

Yes.
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B The other -- July 28th, I went there because of the

other incident. Downstream in Fulton Creek there was an

impact --
Q. Ckavy.
A, -- and this one impacted basically the same location as

the cother one in Fulton Creek in town.

Q. Are you talking about the park incident, the other

incident?
FANN Yes,
Q. Okay, okay. Moving con then, are you familiar with the

Morgan Kalber tank that's located near 312 Wabash in Wamac,

Illincis?

A. Yes.
0. How are you familiar with this site?
A. I conducted a couple site visits and also received a

call from Alan Whitler of a smail crude oil spill in fulton

Creek.

Q. Did you receive a report from IEPA?

A, Yes.

Q. Do you recall on the report who reported the incident to
IEMA?

A, I believe it was John Pricr. T don't recall offhand.

Q. Is there anything that would assist you in refreshing

your recollection?

105

Keefe Reporting Company



10

11

iz

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

A,

Q.

release?

A,

Q.

Yes, the IEMA report.
Okay.
John Prior did ¢all this in to IEMA.

Okay. &nd what was designated as the cause of the

Now are where talking about the Mezo or Kalber Kamp?

We're talking about ~-- Is that for the Kalber Kamp that

I just handed you?

A.

Q.

A,

Q.

This is for the first one.

Did 1 mess it up?

This is 13, 14.

Let me make sure. Excuse me.

That cne is for the park incident.

This cone I just handed you, Mrs. Cahnovsky, you said was

for the park incident?

A,

Yes, 13, 14 for the park incident. The third incident

was a one and-a-half berm.

MS .

break to

CARTER: Ms., Hearing officer, can I have a two-minute

search for documents?

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Sure. We'll take a break.

(A short break was taken.)

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Go back con the record now.

MS.

Q.

CARTER: Okay. Thank you.

{(By Ms. Carter}) Mrs. Cahnovsky, now, I'm going to hand

Keefe Reporting Company
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you wnat has been previously marked as People's Exhibit No. 17

for identification. If you can identify this document for me.
A, Thig is my Inspection Memo.
Q. Okay. And was this Inspecticn Meme generated in

accordance with the procedures that we discussed earlier?

a. Yes.

Q. Okay. BAnd was it made at or near the event?

A, Yes.

Q. Generated in the ordinavry course of business activity?
Al Yes.

MS. CARTER: At this time People move for the admission of
People's 17 into evidence.
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Do the Respondents have any
objection? Hearing none, I will admit People's Exhibit 17.
Q. (By Ms. Carter) Where 1s this tank located?
A This tank low ~- is located near Wabash Street near a

residence at 112 in Wamac.

Q. Are you familiar who operated the tank in July of 20047
AL John Prior.
Q. It says hers you were on site on July 19th; is that

correct?

I, Yes.
Q. What did you observe on this date?
A, There was -- I was -- There was approximately three

Keefe Reporting Company
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barrels of crude oil. Alan Whitler had reported three barrels of
crude o©il, and John Prior had reported a barrel and-a-half, so
it's in the ballpark there, crude o0ll that impacted Fulton Creek.
He had told me that the cause was vandalism.

Q. Okay. Did Mr. Prior tell you anything else? What that
the expense --

A, He told me to speak to Irina Smith who was a resident,
and I did speak to her and she said she saw the tank battery cap

on the floor of the tank battery.

Q. Was access controlled to this site?
A, No, there was not a fence.
0. Okay. You mentioned before that you observed impact in

the creek, did you observe any oil along the creek banks?

A, Yes.
Q. Ckay. Did you notice any efforts at straw containment?
A, Well, there wasn't a location for really containment.

What they were doing was putting straw on top of the water. The
impacted area was about 300 feet so 1t wasn't as far as the other
two spills. &And there was crude oill in the creek, and I believe
there was a worker or two at the site.

Q. Was the straw containment oily?

A, I believe the top of ~- What I saw from my photograpns
is that the ©il had collected on the bottom of 1t, but from the

photographs, I don't think you'll be able to see that there's oil
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on the straw.

Q. Does the oily straw show any purpcse ¢f containment.

A. Well, it's to collect o0il in the creek.

Q. Does it actualily work when it's oily?

. Not when it's oily.

Q. And did you ohserve any recovery operation on site?

A, I believe there was a truck, recovery truck, on site but

I don't believe it was operatiocnal.

0. In your opinion, did this crude o©lil pose a threat to the
environment?

A, It did to the -- to the water, to the surface water., It
was a surface water, surface water hazard. It was offensive
conditions from the crude oil in the c¢reek and onto the soil.

Q. Did you have any concerns about the remediation efforts,
or tack thereof, on July 19th?

A. Yes, 1 did tell him to continue working on this. This
was in a residential area. There was homes nearby. We had
received a call from the Collinsville office from a person who
owned the property, and he was concerned about getting the crude
01l, removing the crude oil.

Q. I'm going to hand you what has been previcusly been
marked Pegople's Exhibit 18 for identificatiocn. T will ask you to
identify this document for me. But did you conduct a subseguent

inspection on site at Morgan Kalber Kamp on July 24th?
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A, Yes.

Q. Can you identify this for me?

A, This is my Inspection Memc with photographs.

Q. And was this Inspection Memo done under your procedures

as we discussed earlier?

A. Yes,

. Was it generated at or near the time the events are
observed?

A, Yes.

o, And was it generated in the cordinary course of business
activity?

A. Yes.

Q. I see that you toak photographs on July 24th, are you

familiar with the conditions on the site on this date?
AL Yes.
Q. And do these photos fairly depict the site on July 20007
A. They do.
MS. CARTER: At this time People ask for the admission of
People's 18.
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Do the Respondents have any
objection? Hearing none, I will admit People's Exhibit 18.
Q. {By Ms. Carter) What did you observe on July 24th?
. There was pockets of crude cil still in the creek. This

photograph deesn't depict it quite as my original but you can see
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them.
Q. and are you referring to Photograph No. 57
A. Five and six.
Q. Let's turn to Photograph No. 5. Where do you observe

the pockets of crude o©il in that photograph?

. You can see them. This 1s a shaded area and that's why
it's a little bit difficult to see. But you can see in through
where it locked yellow, there's pockets of black crude oil in the
middle of those shaded tan areas, and you can see straw at the
bottom of the photograph with & broom that I'm assuming that he
used con the banks of the creek.

Q. Can you tell from this photograph whether the bkank was
still oily? |

A, Yeah, they are a little oily. You can see it prcbably
up 6 inches to a foot.

Q. Do you have an envirconmental concern based on your
observaticons on this date?

A. Yes. He still needed to remove the crude oil from the
creek. 1 was concerned about the aquatic life downstream and
that it would impact Sewer Creek alcong with the three spills. It
had offensive conditions with the c<¢rude oil in the creek. The
water hazard in the water impact, water pollution.

Q. And the creek we'rve referring to this incident is the

Fulton Creek agaln; correct?
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A. fes.

Q. And is that the same creek that we were referring to in
the other two instances as well?

AL Yes.

Q. That's what I thought. Did you have any concerns about
the remediation efferts, or lack of them, that you observed on
the Z24th of July?

A. We discussed removing the straw and putting new straw in

and recovering the crude ©il from the creek.

Q. Based on the size of this release?

A, This size is not as serious as the cother two, but still
an impact to the creek is ~- 1s a concern.

Q. But based on the size of this release, were remediation

efforts going slowly?

A. Yes, they were going slowly. Because this spill
happened on -- I was called about the spill on July 19th of 2000.

Q. And this was the 24th which is five days later?

a. And typically companies have -- can have a spill pretty

well under control in three days.

Q. And was this spill under control on the 24th.
A. No, he was still working on it.
0. Was there any other source that could have been

attributed tc your observations of July?

A, No.
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A,

Why not?

Up gradient I did not see any impact, and down gradient

I only went to about the location of where the spill ended. I

did not go downstream. But normally a spill will impact the

upstream.

Q.

Are you familiar with what remediation activities after

this incident, after this site visit, excuse me, have taken place

on site?

A,

Q.

After this incident?

Let me just strike that question. Are you familiar with

whether or not there were any subseguent remedial activities

performed at this site after your site visit in July?

A.

July,

Well, I was back ~- I spoke to John Prior on the 28th ot

and he told me that he removed the o0ily straw from the

creek on the 26th.

.

Did you engage in any discussions with any consultants

representing Mr. Prior?

A,

Q.

Yes, I dealt with Hopper Envircnmental.

Did they ultimately submit sampling verifying compliance

with TACO standards?

A,

Yes.
Do you recall approximately when that was?
T think that was 2003.

Would anything assist you in refreshing your
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recolliection?
A, Yes, the Assessment.
Q. I'11 have you take a lock at this and tell me what the

date on that is?
A, This is March 12th, 2003. And this is a Site Assessment

for three clean-ups, IEFA was geoing to have do and included this

too.
Q. And it included the Morgan Kalber Kamp?
A. Tes.
Q. And what were the other two incidents that were included

in there?
A. The Bureau of Land, the Gomper site and the
Mezo-Qestreich.
Q. Okay.
MS. CARTER: I have no further questions.
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: ©Okay. Mr. Prior, do you have any
questions for Mrs. Cahnovsky?
MR. PRICR: Ng, ma'am.
HEARING OFFICER 3UDMAN: Mr. Mezo?
MER. MEZO: (Shakes head.)
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Okay. We'll take about a 5 or 10
minute break.
(A short break was taken.)

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Ms. Carter, you may call your next
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witness.
MS. CARTER: The People call Tom Powell.
TOM POWELL,
called as a witness herein, having been first duly sworn,
deposeth and saith as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION

QUESTICONS BY MS. CARTER:

Q. Please state your name.

A. Name is Thomas E. Powell.

Q. And can you tell me about your post-high school
education?

B. I have a bachelor's degree in earth science from

Southern Illincis University in Edwardsville.

Q. When did you obtain that degree?

A. I obtained that degree in 1975.

Q. With whom are you currently employed?

A. I'm employed by the Illincis Environmental Protection

Agency, Emergency Operations Unit.

Q. What's your position with the Tllinois EPA?

A. I'm senior emergency responder with the emergency
operations unit. I've worked for the Agency for over 23 years.
The last 20 which has been as an emergency responder responding
to environmental emergencies in the southern 41 counties of the

state on a 24/7/365 period.
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Q. Okay. Can you tell me about your dutiss when you
respond to an emergency incident?

. Emergency incidents, always taking into account of
public health and safety, the well-being of the citizens of
Illinois, as such, responding to envirconmental emergencies that
would ~- would include, but not be limited to, oil, hazardous
materials, hazardous substances through transportation lncidents,
pipeline which it would include pipeline, commercial carriers,
barge, tow and as such, in addition to fixed facility incidences,
again dealing with hazardous materials, hazardous substance,
hazardecus waste.

Q. And responding to environmental releases, do you
coordinate vour activities with varijous State agencies?

A, Yes, ma'am. We coordinate with local cofficials: local
fire, police, law enforcement either on a local level, a county
level or a state level, and upon the jurlsdiction where we are
working.

o. Do you alsc review certain technical submittals that may

be provided to the I1llinols EP2 after the incident has occurred?

A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. And what do those consist of?
A. Consist of -- those could consist of remediation reports

based upon the correspondence that is issued from the Illinois

EPA to a responsible party or to a party in which we're dealing.
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Q. Might it also include sampling plans?
A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. And I think you sald you worked in that capacity for

approximately 20 years?
A. 20 years with the emergengy response unit. Emergency --

emergency cperations unit.

Q. What did you do with the Illinois EPA prior to that
time?
. Prior to that time I was & RCRA inspector, pursuant to

the RCRA program, Resource Conversation and Recovery Act that
came into being in the early '80s to regulate cradle to grave,
the generation of hazardous waste.

0. During the ccurse of your employment as an emergency
responder, approximately how many inspections have you conducted?
A, Well, in excess of 1,000 inspecticons and site visits.

Q. And what about inspections pertaining to releases of

crude ©il and/or brine?

A. Crude 0il and preoduce water well in excess 200.
Q. When I say the term brine, what does that mean?
B. Brine means to me in the oil production through southern

Illinois, crude cil production, means to be produced water which
is typically very high in chloride content, depending upon the
formation from which the o0il and produced water come from.

Q. Since you've been employed by the Illinois EPA, have you

Keefe Reporting Company

117



10

11

12

13

14

le

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

had the cpportunity to participate in training?

A. Yes, ma’'am. As an emergency responder, there are nine
of us in the state of Illinois. We are all trained to a
Technician B level pursuant to OSHA 1910-120 of the OSHA
regulations. As such as a technician, we receive over 120 hours
of training to achieve that position. Much more than the normal
rank and file agency employees would receive.

Q. And what might that training consist of?

B Training consists of mitigation, both offensive and
defensive posture with hazardous material and hazardous substance
releases. As far as the Technician B training, again, it's all
geared to first responder. I've also been trained with the
Tllinois -~ Illinois Petroleum Resources Board with 0il and brine
releases. We have been trained with the OPA 90, OPA standing for
the 011 Peoliution Act of 19%0 which is a federal requirement.
We've also been trained in various hazardous material instances
through USEPA through continuing educaticn courses.

Q. Ckay. I'm geoing teo hand you, Mr. Powell, what's been
previously marked People's Exhibit No. 19 for identification. If
you could identify this document for me.

A. This is my resume.

Q. And does it accurately reflect your educational
background in an employment history?

A. Yes, ma'am.
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0. Ckay. And is 1t current through the present?

A This is about -- This is a number of years old.
Q. Qkay.
A, But it does reflect my job position that 1 have held for

a numpber of vyears now.
Q. Okay. 8o the only changes might be under perscnnel or
something like that?
A. Perscnnel, ages of my children.
MS. CARTER: At this time People move for the admission of
People's 19 intoc evidence.
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Do the Respondents have any
objection? Hearing none, I will admit Pecople's Exhibit 19.
Q. {(By Mg, Carter} Are you generally familiar with the
illinois Attorney General's Office case involving John Prior and

James Mezo?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. &nd how are you familiar with this case generally
speaking?

A, I'm familiar with the Prior-Mezo sitre in Wamac,

Illinols, as a result of a response that I conducted there.

Q. And when you're saying the Prior-Mezo site in Wamac, are
you referring to the Oestreich No. 1 site located at
approximately 224 Wabash in Wamac?

A. I know i1t to be the Prior-Mezo Qestreich site.
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Q. Okay. The Cestreich site then, ockay.

A, Uh-huh.

Q. Are you familiar with who operated that site?

A. It is my understanding that it was operated by Mr. Prior
for Mr. Mezo.

Q. And approximately how many occaslions have you been to
this site?

A, That particular site I was only at one time being July
1st, 1997.

Q. Okay. 1I'm going to hand you what has previously been
marked Pecple's Exhibit 15 for identification. If you cculd
identify this document for me, sir?

A, This is an Inspection Memorandum that I had generated as
a result of the site visit by myself and Cheryl Cahnovsky.

. Does this Inspectlon Memorandum generally describe your

chservations during an inspection?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. And when do you typically complete such document?

b, Some time after the site visit has taken place.

Q. Once you've completed an Inspection Memorandum, what do

you do with 1t at the Illinois EPA? Is it filed?
A, Yes, ma'am. The original gees to ocur Bureau files or
the headqguarter file, which is located in Springfield, Illinois.

o. And this Inspection Memcorandum, was it generated in the
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ordinary course of business activity?

A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. Did you take photographs while you were out there?
A. Yes, ma'am. Myself and Mrs. Cahnovsky also tock

photographs during this visit.

0. Okay. BAnd are you familiar with the site as it appeared
on July 1lst, '977?

. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Okay. These photographs fairly and accurately show this

site on this date?

A, Yes, ma'am.

Q. Did you also attach some maps to this document?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. What purpose do the maps serve?

A. The maps were -- 1 use the maps to refresh my memcry and

to depict the location of the photographs that we had taken as
well as the actual site where the release took place.

Q. So do the numbers on the photograph correspond with the
numbers on the map that you've drawn?

A, Generally speaking, vyes.

Q. Okay. And will these maps assist you in describing your
observations on July lst?

A, Yes.

MS. CARTER: At this time the People move for the admission

121

Keefe Reporting Company



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

of People's Exhibit 15. I don't think I handed you this one.
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: No. Do the Respondents have any
objection? Hearing none, I will admit People's Exhibit 15.
. {By Ms. Carter) Why were vou on site July 1st?
A. We were on sifte July lst as a result of a
Notificaticon 1 the day bkefore to my regional office to the Burean
of Water Pollution, and as well as a notification of the release

by Mr. Prior to IEMA.

Q. And did anybody accompany you on sSite on July 1lst?
A. Yes, Cheryl Kelly at that time, Cheryl Cahnovsky.
Q. And did anybody meet you on site?

A, On site we had previously met earlier while we were

inspecting and observing the downstream oiled conditicn of Fulton
Branch Creek. We met Alan Whitler and Larry Bengal and an

unknown attorney with the Illinois Department of Natural

Resources.
Q. You said Larry Bengal, who is Mr. Bengal?
A. Larry Bengal is, 1 believe, the manager of the Illinois

-~ the Mines and Minerals portion of the Illinois Department of
Natural Rescurces.

Q. Are you aware whether a significant thunderstorm
occurred in the evening prior to your site visirt?

. Pursuant to conversation with Alan Whitler, Mr. Whitler

indicated there was a shower, thunderstorm as your words,
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thunderstorm afternoon or evening of June 30th.

0. Can you just generally describe the tank battery
production area of the site?

A. Okay. The tank battery production area appeared fto
consist of three approximately 200 barrel tanks also with a gun
barrel. Gun barrel is a slang term for an ¢il water separator.
At this location there were, as I say, three approximately 200
barrel tanks. And alsc during my -- our visit of this day, we
observed a small bobcat type end leader alsc at the location.
However, the bobcat was not being operated at that time. It was
pretty much parked.

Q. Okay. 1If I could direct your attention to Photograph
No. 1, what deoes that show? Maybe 1f T could actualily point to
you one, two and three if you ceculd describe those generally?

A, Okay. Photograph 1 is an access road, or sometimes
known as a lease road, that leads up to a tank battery or a oil
well. This particular area is -- this particular photograph
depicts the access road. It alsc depicts some oil staining in
the foreground. 1t also depicts, appears to be fresh scil that
was deposited on the fire wall or the herms of this tank battery.
I can -~ it appears to be fresh because of the green vegetation
that appears on the inside cf the berm. But on the exterior of
the berm, there appears to be more -- more freshly disturbed soil

that is not green with summer foliage which one would typically
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expect.

0. I apologize, But does that indicate To you that that
berm had recently been built-up?

A, It depicts some activity, earth moving activity had
probably taken place with this. TIt's depicted a little better on
Photograph 3 wherein the foreground or on the right side of the
photograph you can see the berm that is lush with green
vegetation, but in the back of the photograph you can see the
aforementioned bobcat type end loader and some freshly disturbed
scil on that, which I believe be the northern portion of that
tank battery.

Q. Mr., Powell, did you observe, while you were on site, the
flow of any material from this tank berm area?

A. I saw past, past evidences of flows from this tank
battery. Two locations, again, referencing Photograph 1 behind
the red SUV, you can see there's some c©il staining on the lease
road. General gradient direction towards the west where we had
drainage to the intermittent drainageway of Fulton Branch Creeck,
Likewise, on Photograph No. 5, again which is a picture of the
aforementioned bobcat, you can see some ©¢il staining on the soil
heading in the direction of the woods. You can also depict some
bags of what, I believe, to be some peat moss and perhaps some
straw material which is more difficult to see, but again visible

in Photograph 5.
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Q. In Photegraph No. 57

A, Uh-huh.

Q. What's the significance of the peat moss?

A. Peat moss 1is used sometimes on very light spills to try
To use as to tis up or bind up the cil as an abscrbant. 1 was
going to say typlcally we see this con very, very light spills
where we would have perhaps some -~ just some rainbow or sheen in
a waterway ©Or some very, very light oiling of some soil.

Q. In what direction did the material flow?

A, From the tank battery it flowed generally -- depicted on
Photograph 1, generally flowed to the west to the wooded area,
likewise on photograph 5 to the northwest into an unnamed
intermittent drainageway that is tributary to Fulton Branch
Creek.

Q. Did you notice any collection activities at this point
where it entered the unnamed intermittent tributary Fulton Branch
Creek? Did I get that right?

AL Yes.

C. Did you notice any recovery at that point? Did you

netice any contalnment at that point?

A. No, ma'am, other than -- other than a couple straw
bales.

Q. What about further downstream?

. Within the unnamed tributary, or in Fulton Branch Creek?

125

Keefe Reporting Company



10

11

12

13

14

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Q. Let's do the tributary first.

A. No, ma‘am. Other than with the placement of some straw
bales in and arcund the aforementioned tributary.

C. Would you have expected to observe any centainment or
recovery taking place in that tributary?

A. Yes, ma'am. There were oiled soills, there were oiled
pockets of water, pocl ponded water that could have utilized
either an abscrbant boom or a siphon or underflow dam.

Q. When you use the term underflow dam and siphon dam, are

those terms interchangeable?

A, Yes, ma'am.
Q. What about further downstream in Fulton Creek?
B. Fulten Creek was depicted by scome photographs taken by

myself and Mrs. Cahnovsky. In Phctograph No. 8 and 92, which I
had taken, they were approximately two miles away from the spiil
site and they depict heavy accumulation of crude oil that is
certainly recoverable.

0. Okay. You mentioned that it was certainly recoverable,
did that straw serve any purpose when it was heavily oiled?

A, The straw serves no purpose ance it's heavily oiled.
11 it will do is leach crude oil constituents from its -- from
the gtraw itself.

Q. And you're noticing that in Photograph No. 87 What

abeout Photograph No. 97
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A. Likewise. You can see straw bales that have been broken
apart. Someone had placed scme straw in -~ again, these pictures
were taken from Fulton Branch Creek. If was apparent that
someone had spread some -- scome straw or straw type material in
the creek, But generally speaking, the straw is used in this
instance as a type of containment only successful when vacuum
trucks or mechanical recovery is alsoe taking place in conjunction
with placement of the bales.

Q. Did you see any vacuum trucks or any recovery anywhere

at Fulton Creek?

A, On July 1lst I saw absclutely no recovery at any
location.
Q. And you would expect to see recovery operation in a

spill such as this?
A, Yes, ma'am. Yes, ma'am.
Q. Now in terms of o0il staining on the sidewalls of Fulton

Creek, did you make observations of that?

Al Yes, ma'am.

Q. Approximately how far downstream on Fulton Creek
sidewalls?

A, Okay. There were, as referenced bhefore, there was some

rain showers and/or thunderstorms the evening before., There were
some sidewall staining, excuse me, on bridges and concrete

apparatus associated with the bridges and the drainageway there
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in Wamac. In speaking with Alan, which is the letter he
acknowledged there was visible oil within Sewer Creek, scme cover
-— some two and-a-~half miles away from the particular tank
battery.

Q. What does Photograph No. 10 depict?

A. Photograph No. 10 depicts oil that is floating
downstream. You can see it tied to the -- or close to the banks
and you can see portions of 0il also floating downstream. Again,
this location was again taken, referencing my map or referencing
the maps associated with this location, that was nearly not quite
two miles away from the site from the tank battery that
experienced the breach.

Q. I probably should have asked you this socner. 1Is this
located in close proximity to the tank battery? T apclogize.

Was this located in close proximity to residential areas?

A. There were houses, as I recall, to the south and/or
scutheast.

Q. Okay.

2 I do net recall any access restrictions or fences or

anything like that.

Q. &nd just for a frame of reference, how many gallons are
in a barrel?

A, 42 petrcleum barrels.

Q. And did you notice any crude oil odors while you were on
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site?
Al Yes, ma'am.
Q. Was that just in the viginity of the spill or the

release point or was it further downstream?

A. At the release points at the tank batteries, in the
unnamad intermittent drainageway to Fulton Branch Creek, in
Fulten Branch Creek alse on the socuthwest portion of Wamac. A
strong olfactory, odor was detected.

Q. Do you have an opinicn concerning the remedial efforts,

if any, you observed to this site?

4. Yes, ma'am.
Q. &And what's your copinion?
A. My opinion is that on July 1st when 1 visited the site,

there was absolutely no recovery operations that were taking
place. There were feeble attempts for using straw for
containment methods. But, again, no, no commercially available
boom or pads which is a hydrophobic material which is typically
used in o0il field industry nowadays. 2&nd as such, I basically
saw no recovery taking place whatsocever, again, at these
downstream locabtions as well as at the tank battery itself.

Q. Based upon your observations cf July lst, did you form
an opinion concerning what the Respondents' efforts, if any, were
directed to at that time?

AL Yes, ma'am.
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Q. And what was that?

A. It was apparent that there was no recovery that was
taking place downstream because of the aforementioned rainfall
event that occurred on the 30th of June perhaps washing away the
0il from the site.

Q. Okay. From your observations of July 1st, did it appear
the priority was being given to improve the tank berm?

A, That was my observation. That there was actual physical
activity, one piece of eguipment, although it was unmanned, but
one plecs of eqguipment and, again, the fresh scil that was
apparent around the west and northwest and north berms nf the

aforementioned tank battery.

Q. Do you have any environmental cpinilons concerning your
observation?

A. Yes, ma'am,

Q. And what is that?

A. As far as aquatic receptors in Fulton Branch Creek and

additicnally downstream Sewer Creek, I feel that a pollution
event had occurred to the water and most likely to the wildlife
associated with those waterways.

Q. Okay. Mr. Powell, what kind of record does the Illinois
EPA regularly generate and maintain to provide notice to a
potential vielator cof viclations ¢f the Illinois Environmental

Protection Act?
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A. It could take the form of a non-advisory letter, it
could take the form of a Violation Notice or it could take the
ferm of a Section 43 which is an immediate referral to the
Bttorney General's Office.

Q. I'm going to hand tc you what's previcusly been marked
People's No. 20 for identification here today. Hang on. I just
got to put it tegether here. I'll ask you to identify this
document for me because T will also hand you what has also
previously been marked People's Exhibit 21 and ask the same
questions of you in just a moment. I'll hand you, again, what's
been marked People's Exhibit 20 and 21. 1f you could take them
in turn and identifying each document for me.

A. Okay. People's Exhibit No, 20 is a Violation Notice,
1997-01058 issued to Mr. Jim Mezo deoing business as James Mezo
Cil Company.

Q. And what about People's Exhibit 217

A. 21 is a Violation Notice 199%8-00071 issued to Mr. John
Pricr, again, doing business as Prior Qil Company.

o, Does the Pecople's Exhibit 21 indicate that it was
delivered via hand delivery?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. and People's Exhibit 20 indicates that it was delivered
via certified mail?

AL Yes, ma'am.
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0. Once a Violaticon Notice is complefted and sent to the
respondent, does the I1linois EPA maintain these records in its
files?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Okay. BAnd are they regularly generated by the Illinocis
EPA?

A, They are generated by the Illinoils EFA for sites that
require additional remediation or work.

Q. Okay. And do vou typically receive ccples or notice
that these violation letters have gone out?

A. Net in all cases. We have -- Sometimes yes, sometimes
no.

Q. OCkay. If a Vielaticn Notice letter goes out, do you
typically participate in any subseguent msetings with the
raspondent 1f 1t is requested?

A. If requested by my management or my in-house attorneys,
yes, ma'am.

Q. Okay. And was this People's Exhibit No. 20 generated in
the ordinary course of business activity?

A, Yes, ma'am.

Q. And what about Exhibit 21, was it generated in the
ordinary course of business activity?

A, Yes, ma'am.

M3. CARTER: At this time Pecple move for the admission of
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People's 20 and 21 into evidence.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Do the Respondents have any
ocbjection? Hearing none, I will admit People's Exhibits 20 and
21.

0. {(By Ms. Carter) Turning to the Viclation Netice, what
sort of information is typically included in these documents?

A, Typically 1t's a slight ~- it's a very brief overview of
the facts, as we understand them, pursuant to the release or
pertaining to the release. It references some of the alleged
viclations out of our Environmental Protection Act. It also
discusses or provides some discussion needed to resolve the
hgency the viclations.

0. Did you participate in a Viclation Notice meeting with

Mr. Mezo?

a. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Do you recall generally what was discussed in that
meeting?

A. Generally what was discussed was the need for

remediation and documentation of clean-up of the site which would
typically be in the form of samples, scoil samples, from arcund
the tank battery as well as sediment samples from the
aforementioned drainage waste and creek.

Q. Have a similar vioclation meeting with Mr. Pricor?

A. T don't recall. I recall a NIPLA, Notice of Intent to
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Pursue Legal Action, which is ~- that was on Ccrtober 4th, 1999,
because we had not received a resoclution of the ~- of the site,

you know, in that two and-a-half year period or two year plus

period.

2. Do you recall what was generally discussed in that
meeting?

A, That meeting we generally discussed the need for

documentation that the site has been cleaned up or remediated in
some fashion.

Q. Mr. Powall, is there any other source that you have
contributed to your observation of July 1lst?

A, Based on July lst, no, ma'am.

Q. Are you familiar with what remedial activities, 1f any,
have taken place since that time?

A. I'm familiar that there have been two reports generated
as a result of this release. When I say reports, envirconmental
contractors or consultant reports; one, the initial one by, I
believe, order or requested by Mr. Mezo was by Chase
Envircnmental, I believe, out of Paducah, Kentucky. That would
have been early '98. And subseguent to that what later one that,
I believe, was requested by Mr. Prior by Hopper Environmental
that was ccmpleted or dated earliier this year.

o. And you said there was plans submit earlier this year or

reports submitted earlier this year; correct?
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A Yes, ma'am.

Q. Do you recall generally what would have included in that
report?

A. It was a report that we requested some additional

sampling pursuant to the first report, a report by Chase

Environmental, and it was some additiconal sampling.

Q. Did you review that first report by Chase Environmental?

A, I remember seelng it.

0. Did you generate a memo documenting your review of it?

A. I don't recall.

Q. Would anything assist you in refreshing your
reccllection?

A. If I had a memo.

Q. Does that assist you? Can you identify that? Is that

the right thing?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Ckay. Can you identify that document?

A. This is a memorandum from me to my immediate manager
referencing the Chase Environmental Group report that -- initial
report was submitted -- was dated Magrch 6 of 1998, and a revised

submission dated April 4th of 1998.

Q. and what does your memorandum indicate to you about your
report?
A, There was three bullet peints on the memorandum
135
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basically reguesting additional sample locations north and south
of sample locations before RR and B9, reguesting a minimum of two
soll sediment sample locations from the unnamed intermittent
drainageway that first received the oll that ran off from this
site. And then I also had comment pursuant to the depth of
samples obtained by Chase Envirconmental, as this was a surfacs
spill. I believe that some initial sample results by Chase were
taken at a depth ¢f 2 feet., Which typically if you have =
surface spill, we look for 0 toc 6 inches or perhaps 6 inches to a
2 foct level rather than taking samples beginning at 2 feet.
Again, 1f it were a subsurface release point, i.e., a buried
pipeline, that would be an area to look for, but again, since
this was a -- basically an overtopping of a fire wall, ran across
the surface, I was -- had some concerns about the depth at which
these samples were taken.

Q. Mr. Powell, are you aware of whether the Respondent ever
performed the sampling consistent with your memorandum?

A, I believe the subseguent report dated earlier this year
by Hopper Environmental addresses these concerns.

Q. Okay. &nd 1f I hand you this report, which I'm doing,
can you identify the date on that document?

I, This 1is the Hopper Environmental, Inccrpcorated report
dated March 12th of 2003.

Q. And is this the report that you're referencing that
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site?
A. Yes, ma'am.

MS. CARTER: ©Okay. Thank you, sir. I have no further
guestions of this witness.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Mr. Prior, do you have any
guestions for thils witness?

MR. PRICR: No.

HEARING QFFICER SUDMAN: Mr, Mezo?

MR. MEZO: WNo.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Let's go off the record.

(A discussion was held off the record.)

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: The People’s final witness will
not be here until tomorrow morning so we decided to go ahead and
have one of the Respondents testify now. So I will call
Mr. Prior to the witness stand, please. A&nd the court reporter
will swear you in.

JOHN PRIOR,
called as a witness herein, having been first duly sworn,
deposeth and saith as follows:
HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: And would you state your name before you
begin, please?
A. John Prior.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Okay. Mr., Prior, you just may
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proceed in a narrative form and present your evidence.

MR. PRIOR: Okay. I don't recall how and where to start,
but this entire matter stems from, if you want to call it,
vandalism. And there's not a whole lot I can say about it except
LI do have a -- 1 have a tape recording, and I have a written
document notarized from the people that took it in confession of
one of the people that done it indicating the person that hired
him to do it. And I then called a meeting to discuss that with
people from the EPA, the local authorities, the insurance people,
T1linois Department of Natural Resource people and the person's
property that this particular incident happened on.

It was not the complainant who has always been Harold
Alexander or his son, Harold Junicr. They've been the
complainants every time, and they're the ones responsible for
this -- these releases every time. And I have a list of the
people present at that meeting, and they signed the meeting time
and date. I'd like to present that as evidence.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Do you have a copy of that with
you that I can take a look at?

MR. PRIOR: Yes.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: And do you happen to have an extra
copy that T can and Ms. Carter can look at?

MR. PRIOR: ©HNo.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: This is a statement from a person
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MR. PRIOR: Yes.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: TI'll show this to you when I'm
done.

MS. CARTER: Okay.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: And this is a typed out copy of
what your tape recording says?

MR. PRIOR: Yes.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: What is this second sheet of
paper?

MR. PRICR: That -- that Harold Alexander Junior, he's
referring to when he was telling me these things, he continued on
talking about that.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Okay. 5o this isn't relevant to
your case?

MR. PRIOR: I believe it is in that he has a vendetta
against me for some reason, and I really don't know why. Also,
these things happened every time -- Bvery time it happened, it
either just ralned or was raining at the time.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: We'll give Ms. Carter a minute to
read that as well.

MS. CARTER: Okay. May I respond to --

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Are you moving to introduce that

into evidence?
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MR. PRIOR: Yes, ma'am.

HERRING OFFICER SUDMAN: You may respond.

M3. CARTER: My first objection to the two documents, that
they are affidavits of Brandon Reyncolds: One, i1s that both
documents are hearsay. We don't have the gentleman here to
testify tc the truth of what is certified in both of these
documents. My second objection to the first document where it's
talking about an oil spill in Wamac. We'wve bean talking about
three oil spills in Wamac. Tt doesn't talk with specificity,
which discerns this from what he's talking about. My second
objection to the second attachment it's completely not relevant.
It has nothing to do with the release of that issue in this case.
It does not discuss a personal vendetta between a Mr. Harold
Alexander and Mr. John Prior and, therefore, I don't see the
relevance of this at all, In terms of the third document, I
don't have an objection to this.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Well, 1 think they're all
together.

MS. CARTER: All together. Well, I den't have an objection
to that at all.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Mr. Prior, I'm going to sustain
the People's objecticn. I reviewed the document. It is
primarily hearsay. It's not very clear exactly what it's about,

and I don't think it's terribly probative or relevant to this
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proceeding. So I'd like you to -- I'm not going to admit this
document to the record, so please pick up where you left off and
let's move on to your next -- the next evidence you'd like to
produce.

MR. PRIQOR: I don't have any other evidence.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: D¢ you have any more to add to
your narrative? Would you like to go into some explanation about
anything that the People presented in their case? Would you like
to respond to that at this time?

MR. PRIOR: I really don't know how to, ma'am.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: ©Ckay. So you don't have anything
else?

MR. PRIOR: No.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Anything you care to add?

MR. FRIOR: No.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Okay. Ms. Carter?

MS5. CARTER: I have no gquestions for this witness.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Okay. Then you may step down.
Mr. Mezo?

JAMES MEZO,
called as a witness herein, having been first duly affirmed,
deposeth and saith as follows:

HEARING QFFICER SUDMAN: And, Mr. Mezo, would you please

state your name again for the record before you begin?
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MR. MEZC: James Mezo, M-E-Z2-0.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Okay. Thank you. You may be
begin.

MR. MEZO: Well, my whole story depends or hinges on the
ownership., Several menths prior to this spill that we're talking
about, I had sold the Cestreich lease and the eguipment to John
Pricr, and he was going to go ahead and try to develop it. He
had a problem with getting the permits transferred. We had done
the assignment and the 0G-22, but for some reason he was unable
to get the transfer made. And, of course, this spill occurred in
the meantime,

And T believe that I did everything possible as socn as I
knew, you know, what I needed to do. I wasn't aware of the spill
until several days later. I don't know the exact date, but, you
know, by that time the information I had, was that the spill was
pretty well contained and cleaned up.

And I got -- Let's see. I got a letter, I guess, on July
the 14th of '87. Let's see. No, I got to back up. I'm wrong
there. MWy response letter to Charles Brutlag with the Illinois
EPA was dated July the 14th and I had -- I had been notified of
the spill, B2nd they subseguently on December the 12th of '97
rejected the plan that I had submitted, said it wasn't sufficient
and instructed me to have some environmental company to do this

study. And then I contacted Chase Environmental out of Paducah

Keefe Reporting Company

142



10

11

1z

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

and gave him the letter ountlining what the EPA wanted done. And
nhe proceeded to do that, and I have the invoice that I received,
March the 3rd cf '98.

And then I —-- I guess I subsequently received a letter
that, I guess, Mr. Powell, is he the one that testified, referred
to and said doesn't remember if the got the second 6 inch
samples? But then I have here the involce where Chase
Environmental killed me for those extra samples, the 6 inch
samples, as opposed to the 2 foot samples on March the 11th. And
then I received the site investigation and the plan that they --
that they had come up with to develop 1it, and I sent that to the
compliance specialist in Springfield on March the 18th of '98.

Let's see. I don't think they furnished me with a copy of
the notice. But anyway, the EPA rejected that plan and notified
me on, I guess, August -- no, wailt a minute. I can't seem to
find the date. But subseguently they notified me that the plan
had been rejected and that they plan to pursue legal action. And
at that time I decided that I couldn't -- I couldn't handle it,
you know. I done everything I thought I c¢ould humanly possibly
could do. So I contacted the EPA and went to Springfield for a
meeting.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Mr. Mezo, can I interrupt you for
a moment? Are you speaking with any particular site or all of

the -- all of the sites?
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MR, MEZO: I'm just talking about the Oestreich strike. I
thought that was the only one I was involved in. T hope it is.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: ©Okay. Proceed.

MR. MEZO: Okay. Then on -- I received a letter dated
August the 6th from the EPA -- T can condense this. I probably
just need to read this one part here.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Mr. Mezo, what are you looking at?
Is this a letter that the People have introduced already intgo
evidence?

MR. MEZQ: No, no, it isn't,

HEARING QFFICER SUDMAN: Qkay.

MR, MEZO: It's a letter dated August &6, 1999, from
Illinois Protection Agency and it's -- that's the wrong letter.

I got too wmany papers here. Give me a minute. Yeah, I guess
that's right. Yeah, I guess August the 6th is the date. And
this is & -~ this is the attachment to this letter, for whatever
that means, but it reads here in the second paragraph on the
first page of the Attachment No. 1. I'll just read the whole
paragraph. "The release incident was initially reported by Prior
as having been closed by Mezo 01l Company. Accordingly, TIllinois
EPA issued a code Violation Notice on December 12th, 1997,
relative to the release. On September 29th, 19%%8, fcllowing
Illincis EPA's rejection of Mezo's proposed compliance commitment

agreement and Agency's issuance of a Notice of Intent to Pursue
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Legal Actiocon, Illinois EPA representatives met with Mezo to
discuss the release. On that date Mezo provided information
which indicated that Prior had purchased the mineral rights and
all eguipnent at the relevant tank battery from Mezo before
Release No. 9711959." That's the QOestreich release T think.
"Occurred more over Prior responded to the spill and did not
inform Mezo of the occurrence or the release until several days
later.”" So when I received this letter, and it goes ahead and
says further on September 29th Mezo indicated --

HEARTING OFFICER SUDMAN: Mr. Mezo, could you speak up a
little bit, please?

MR. MEZO: Yeah, probably.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Ckay.

MR. MEZ0: That's not relevant. Anyway, after I got this
letter, I guess wrongly assumed that they had, vou know, got off
my case and was going to have Mr. Prior do it. As 1t turned out,

I think they required him to do probably the same tests and

surveys that I had ordered done. And I believe Mr. -- I think I
teld you -~ on this -- yeah, T got that, okay. So anyway, the
letter that I got from the -- from Mr. Ryan's cffice, stated that

the reason they were going to take the legal action was that I
had failed fto respond. And I don't know, you know, what else I
could have done. I didn't have the right, or I didn't think I

had the legal right, to go do anything on the lease since I
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actually didn't own the equipment any more. And did, yecu know, I
thought well, you know, if I can reasonably get it handled, I
knew I still had a responsibility because the permit was still in
my name, because it hadn't been transferred, even though I didn't
own the eguipment any more. So, you know, 1t just seemed to me
that I was at a brick wall, and I had tried toc do everything they
asked me to do and timely.

I think if you look at the time line in the records, all
the documents, that they're response -- the State's response time
and the EPA's respconse time was a lot leonger than mine from the
time I received notice.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Did you want to introduce that
into evidence, that letter?

MR. MEZ0: Yes, 1f I can get it all together. You know, I
believe I can. And I thought T had & list of the pecple that
were at that meeting, but I had requested all the documents on
that case. And when I got the packet, there was a -— three pages
of things that they had withheld because it was going to be used
in the -- their case. And I thought one of those was the list of
the people that was at that meeting, and if it was, I misplaced
it. But I believe Mr. Powell testified that he was at that
meeting that we had. But there was, I think, three EPA agents
and then the supervisor was on the phone, on the conference call,

speaker phone type thing, and my wife was there. But I don't
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have that list. But, yes, T would like to enter this -- this
letter and those attachments. Iet's see. 1 believe that's it,

HEARING COFFICER SUDMAN: Mr. Mezo, that letter was
addressed to Mr. Prior. 1Is that what you wanted to give to us?

MR. MEZO: Yes, that is my copy. Part of that attachment
is what T thought was transferring the responsibility for that
spill from myself to Mr. Prior,

HEARTING OFFICER SUDMAN: Okay. I see.

MS. CARTER: I don't have any objection.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Is this the only evidence you're
seeking to have admitted, or do you have any cthers?

MR. MEZO: Well, the invoices from Chase Environmental that
would only indicate that I was trying, but that would probably
not have no effect?

M5. CARTER: Can 1 see them?

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Yes, why don't you show them to
Ms. Carter.

MR. MEZO: This is the initial study when he was referring
to the 2 foot sample and then they asked for the & inch samples,
and then I asked Chase to do those, and then this is the invoice
for that. It was a few days later.

MS. CARTER: I do not have any obljecticns on these
documents, but I have gquestions on the questionability of these

documents.
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HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Okay. Mr. Mezo, I'm marking these
as Respondents® Exhibit 1. That I will clarify in the record
that it's you. That August 6th, 1999, letter to Mr. Prior and
it's the attachment and your invoice. Your invoices will be
marked as Respondents' Exhibit 2. So you may proceed. Do you
have anything else you'd alike to say on your behalf?

MR. MEZO: WMo, not that I can think of now.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Ms. Carter?

MS. CARTER: Ms. Hearing Officer, when you're done marking
those exhibits, can I take a look at the invoices?

HEARING CFFICER SUDMAN: Sure.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
QUESTIONS BY M. CARTER:

Q. Good afternoon, Mr. Mezo. I've sat in this room all day
today and haven't introduced myself. Sally Carter. I've talked
to you on the phone a number of times.

A. Many timeas.

Q. Many times. I do have a few gQuestions, sir. What do
you do for a living?

A. Well, I'm in the ©il production business, and 1 also

have an insurance agency.

Q. How long have you been in the oil production business?
A, About 23 years. Starting 1980, T believe,
c. Do you currently have a number of wells permitted to you

Keefe Reporting Company



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

by the Illinois Department of Natural Rescurces?

A,

Q.

counties

Yea, I do.

Ckay. Do you know approximately how many you have?
I think totally probably 60.

607

Uh-huh.

Okay.

Total wells. That's producers and disposal injection

Yeah, injection. BAnd are they located in a number of
across the state?

Yes.

Do yeou know what counties they're located in?

Tes.

Can you tell me, sir?

Heamilton, White, Washington, Jefferson, Wayne.

Any others?

I guess I don't have Saline any more.

MR. PRIOR: Maybe Franklin.

MR. MEZO: HNo Franklin.

Q.

(By Ms. Carter) Do you actually physically coperate all

fhose wells?

A,

Q.

Yes, ma'am.

You're actually on site doing all the work and
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everything else?

A, Yas, ma'am. I have no employees.

Q. No employees?

A, Only contract labor.

Q. Have your operations changed over time? Have you always
been the individual on site doing the operations?

Al Yes.

Q. Okay. And this well that we've been talking about here
teday, you referred to it by a lease name?

A, Oestreich, Cestreich No. 1.

Q. Oestreich No. 1. That's how you say the name that T'wve
been murdering all day today?

A, Yes, ma'am.

Q. So that's included in the lease that we've been talking
about with Mr. Pricr and you?

A, Yes, ma'am.

Q. And I think that you mentioned before that several
months prior to the release, you sold all the equipment and

evervthing else to Mr. Prior; is that correct?

Al Yes.

Q. But you didn't get the well --

A. We didn't get the bond transferred.

Q. And & bhond is a requirement of the Department of Natural

Rescurces?
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A. Well, we didn't get the permits transferred. I misspoke
that.

Q. You couldn't get the permits transferred? &And why did
you not get the permits transferred? Is it a permit block?

A, I was trying to think of the term. He had a violaticn
that prevented the State from transferring, was my understanding.

Q. Okay. And today, sir, isn't it true that that well 1is
still permitted in your name?

A. Permit is still in my name, but it's been plugged.

O. It's been plugged?

A, The well's been plugged out and the tanks are gone and
the cil and gas people have sent release of —-

0. I'm sorry. They sent what?

A. They sent a -- the release to me that the well has been
plugged and the site 1s cleaned up, pits are filled and all the
aquipment is removed and it's not there any more.

Q. Okay. Are ycou familiar with when that well was plugged?

A, Yeah, 1f I can get my stuff. I think I got the -~ I
think I got the plugging affidavit.

Q. Is it in this document?

. Teah.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Go ahead, Mr. Mezo.
Q. (By Ms. Carter) Nothing in it I really don't feel.

A, Nope, sorry. 1 don't have it,
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. You deon't have 1it?
MR. MEZO: Do you know when it was plugged, Jehn? He did
it.
MR. PRIOR: It was more than a year.
A. It was scmetime last year, but I guess I failed to pick
up the plugging affidavit.
c. (By Ms. Carter) Okay. And you said that Mr. Pricr did
the plugging work for you; is that correct?
A, He did the plugging work. It wasn't actually for me.

It was his.

Q. Okay. But vyou were still permittee of record at the
time?

A. I was still the permittee of record, ves.

0. And was a well inspector from the Department of Natural

Resources on site during the plugging?

A, Yes, I'm sure.

Q. Okay. And was that Mr. Alan Whitler?

A. I believe it was --

Q. Mr, Myer or Mr. Price?

A, Price.

Q. Mr. Price.

A, I think Price is the one that signed the plugging
affidavit.

Q. Okay.
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A. And also I didn't bring that either I don't think but I
did get a, you know, the final release that everything had been

cleaned up and --

Q. So the site has been remedlated?

A, The site has been restored.

Q. Do you have a copy of that, sir? May I see that?

A. There it is. March 18th of 2002, that's when they dated

that plugging affidavit.
Q. Okay. Thank you.
A. And this is the letter, 1 think, verifying that

everything has been done.

0. May I see that?
A. Bs far as, vyou know, you get the plugging affidavit and
then later you gone -- you got six months to fill the pits and

clean it up and all that.

Q. May I Jjust take this back to mny desk for a minute?

A, Can I look at it for a minute before you do?

0. Yeah. I just want tc write something down.

A. I want to make sure. Yeah, I think that's what I think
it is.

Q. Qkay. Mr. Mezo, vyou said you've been working in the oil

production business for the past 23 years or so; is that correct?
A, That's correct.

Q. Do you —-- Can you tell me about your educaticnal
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background?
A. Yeah, I went to high school and then graduated.
o. When did you do that?
. 1950.
Q. Okay. Have you had any further courses since that time,

any schooling, sir, since then?
A. Well, I have to dec ongoing education every year for --

or every two years for my insurance license.

Q. Okay.

Aa. And I've been to several of the PTTC training sessions
on -- in o0il preduction.

0. What did you just say?

i PTTC.

Q. What does that stand for?

A. Petroleum Technclogy Transfer Something.

Q. Okay.

A. It comes through the University cf Illinois. They do

periodic seminars and training sessions in, you know, different
towns, different areas.

Q. I'm going to hand you, sir, your Exhibit No. 2. Tt's
your involce from Chase Envircnmental.

A. Okay.

C. Tf T could just direct your attention, sir, to the

analytical portion of that document. Do you see that at the
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bottom, where it says analytical?

A. Oh, vesah.

Q. Do you see something that says B Text?

A, Yes,

Q. Okay. Do you know what that means?

A, Yeah, T did but I forgot.

Q. Do you see the word -- or PNA there?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know what that means?

L. Huh-uh.

Q. Okay.

A, That's why I paid Timmy Walker to do this.
o. Do you happen -- I'm handing you the second page of your

Respondents' Exhibit 2, do you see the words B Text or PNA cn
that invoice?

A. No.

Q. I'1l take those back from you, sir? Thank you. Sir, I
think when you were testifying before you referenced a July ldth,
1997, letter of yours responding to a letter of Mr. Charles
Brutlag, do you recall that? 1I'll hand you a copy, Sir.

A, Yes.

Q. And I'1l mark it as an exhibit. It's marked as Pcople's
Exhibit No. 22. Okay. The first letter is that letter that you

received from Mr. Brutlag?
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A. Yeah, I think that's 1t.

Q. Okay. And the second letter that 1s attached to that,
that's -- 1s that your response that you identified before?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. And in the second paragraph of your July 1l4th,

1997, letter, do you identify the measures that you employed to
deal with the situation on site?

A, Uh-huh.

Q. Okay. And then in the last line of your second
paragraph there, it says "We hope to have this accomplished
today," who's we?

A, John Prior and his crew.

MS. CARTER: Ms. Hearing Cfficer, at this time the People
seek to admit into evidence People's Exhibit 22.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: And there's no objection to this?

MR. MEZO: No, 1s that this letter?

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Yeah, You've seen this. I'm
geing to go ahead and admit People's Exhibit 22,

MS, CARTER: I'll just be just a moment. I have no further
guestions. Thank vyou.

HEARING COFFICER SUDMAN: Mr. Mezo, I'll allow you to
redirect yourself if you want. Would you like to make any
comments in light of the questions that Ms. Carter has asked you,

or is there anything further that you would like to —-- any
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further deocuments that you would like to intreduce or anything
you'd like to clarify?

MR. MEZO: Except I probably should say I wasn't on site on
this. The information I received was for the people that were
doing the work, you know, so, like I said, I had -- I had nco, no
personal involvement in the operation at that time since I didn't
think I had the right or the ability to do that since it, vou
know, it wasn't my eqguipment and it wasn't my lease at that
point, you know, except like she said, I was still the permittee
of record, but not by my choice.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Would you like to ask anything
further about that, Ms. Carter?

MS. CARTER: No, thank you.

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Mezo. T
think we will go ahead and wrap up for the day. Let's go off the
record for one moment.

(A discussion was held off the record.)

HEARING OFFICER SUDMAN: We will recess for the day. 2&nd
we will begin tomorrow at 9 a.m. with the Complainant's final
witness. We are recessed.

{Recessed at 3:45 p.m.)
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